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KEY INFORMATION

| INVESTMENT POLICY AND BENCHMARK

To achieve growth of shareholder value, Hansa Trust PLC
nvests in a portfolio of special situations, where indwidual
holdings or specific sectors may constitute a significant
proportion of the portfolia or that of the equity of the
companies concerned This investment approach may
produce returns which are not replicated by movements i
any market index Performance s measured against an

STATISTICS

ahsolute benchmark dernved from the three year average
rolling rate of return of a five year UK government bond,
plus 2% with interest being re-invested semi-annualty
investments are intended to add value over the medium to
tonger term through a non-market correlated, conviction
based investment style

31 March 2007 31 March 2006 % change
Shareholders’ Funds £249 Sm £196 4m 270
Dividends (see Note 7) 12 5p 9 75p 282
Net Asset Value per
Ordinary share 1,039.4p 818 2p 270
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary share 1,039 4p 818 2p 270
Performance Benchmark 6 7% 6 6%
Share Price
Qrdinary shares 1,123.0p 847 5p 325
‘& non-voling Ordinary shares 1,022 5p 818 0p 2590
FTSE All Share index 3,283 3,048 77
Discount / (Prenmum)
Ordinary shares (8 0%) (3 6%) -
‘A’ non voting Ordinary shares 16% 0 0%
Total Retuen
Ordinary shares 341% 51 9% -
‘A non voting Ordinary shares 26 6% 51 9% -
FTSE All-Share Index 115% 28 5% -

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company has 8,000,000 Ordinary shares of 5p and
16,000,000 ‘A" non-votng Ordinary shares of Sp each in
1ssue The Ordinary Sharehalders are entitled 1o one vote
per Ordinary share held The *A’ non-voting Ordinary shares

STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

do not entitle the holders to vote or receive notice of
meetings but in all other respects they have the same nights
as the Campany’s Ordinary shares

During the year under review the Company has operated as
an mvestment company, under Section 266 of the
Comparies Act 1985 and in compliance with Section 842 of
the income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 The Company
has received approval as an investment trust for the year
ended 31 March 2006 The Directors are of the opimion that
the Company has subsequently directed s affairs so as to
enable 1o continue to obtain Inland Revenue approval as
such

COMPANY REGISTRATION AND NUMBER

There has been no significant change in the activities of the
Company and its substdiary (the ‘Group’) during the year
and the Directors anticipate that the Group will continue
to operate in the same manner during the current year

The Company ts registered i England and its number s 126107




10 YEAR PERFORMANCE STATISTICS

| TEN YEAR RECORD
FTSE

Year Shareholders’ Net Asset Value per share Share Price All-Share Discount/(Premium)

ended Funds Ordinary ‘A’ Ordinary Ordinary ‘A’ Ordinary Index Ordinary ‘A’ Ordinary
2007 £249 47m 1,039 4p 1,039 4p 1,123 0p 1,022 5p 3,283 (8 0%) 16%
2006 £196 38m 818 2n 818 2p 847 5p 818 0p 3,048 (3 6%) 0 0%

#2005 £140 05m 583 5p 583 5p 566 Op 546 5p 2,458 3 0% 6 3%
2004 £102 44m 426 8p 426 8p 350 Op 346 5p 2,197 18 0% 18 8%
2003 £64 90m 270 4p 270 4p 215 0p 218 0p 1,736 20 5% 19 4%
2002 £89 16m 371 5p 3715p 307 5p 305 Op 2,557 17 2% 17 9%
2001 £9932m 413 9p 413 %9p 430 Op 390 Op 2,711 (18 4%) 58%
2000 £106 79m 445 Op 445 0p 416 5p 382 5p 3,111 6 4% 14 Q%
1999 £67 96m 281 9p 281 9p 2250p 195 Op 2.894 20 2% 30 8%
1998 £74 79m 310 4p 310 4p 276 5p 250 5p 2,781 10 9% 19 3%
1997 £62 01m 257 1p 257 1p 223 0p 237 5p 2,099 13 3% 7 6%

# Restated to comply with IFRS, which was adopted i 2006, all prior information has not been restased

{ TEN YEAR SHAREHOLDERS® TOTAL RETURN RECORD
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FTSE Al Share - total return 1152% 66 27% 54 15% 116 24%
Past Performance 1s not a guide to future performance Source Internal unaudited management mformation




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

THE YEAR'S RESULTS:

NAV +27 0% 1o 1,039 4p pershare

Being able to report on very good resuits for the year can be
as difficult as very poor ones, If only because such results
cannot be expected every year and it ts important that they
should not raise expectations about future returns, they
will not always be this good in the short-term A return of
27 0% from the net asset value ("NAVY) — it rose 221 2p
after a dwidend payment of 9 75p to 1,039 4p per share -
ts excellent under most cicumstances and, given that our
benchmark produced a return of 6 7% and the stockmarket
(as measured by the FTSE All-Share index) of 7 7%, this
year's returns were indeed exceltent Furthermore, the
return was the highest amongst our peer group, the
Association of Investment Companies’ UK Growth section
john Alexander, our portfolio manager with Hansa Capital,
provides his usual excellent rewew on page 20, covering
eveitts In the stockmarket and 1n our portfoho and, on
behalf of all Shareholders, I would like to extend our thanks
to William Salomaon. John and their colleagues for these
results

An analysis of the contnbutions made by the different
holdings in the portfolio shows that our holding in Ocean
Wilsons, which was already a large proportion of the total

DIVIDEND

when the year started, had another very successful year
(more of which later), the value of our holding rose by
£30 6 million, contributing 127 4p per share to the overall
nse of 221 2p, referred to above The holdings i Cathedral
Capital, which was taken over during the year, contributed
13 1p, inResolution PLC Y 4p, m Ark Therapeutics 8 2p and
DV3 Limited 8 1p — making a total of 166 2p per Hansa
Trust share Only 21 of the 71 holdings held during the
course of the year failed 1o make a posttive contnbution - a
good winnersflosers ratioc — a lot of which were our
investments n large companies whose shares have
become quie cheap, the five largest losers were our
holdings in Media Square, Caun Energy, Leadcom
Integrated Solutions, Burst Medsa and BP, losing between
them 17 7p pershare

It ts important Lo point out that, although Ocean Wilsons
was ihe biggest contributor to our returns, the rest of the
portfolio performed well too For the record the net asset
value of the Company, excludimg the mvestment in Ocean
Wilsons, rose by 14 8%, which also compares favourably
with the benchmark, the market and with most of our
competition

+28.2%to 12 5p per share

As (s often - but not always - the case 1n a good year, our net
income from mvestments also rose, producing earntngs per
share of 12 8p per share (10 8p 1In 2006) As a consequence
the Board s recommending to Shareholders a final
dividend of 9 Op per share, which, if approved, will bring
the total for the year to 12 5p per share - an increase of

SHAREHOLDERS' RETURNS:

28 2% it should be remembered that the porifolo s
managed on the basts of seeking capital appreciation, o
thatin any one year the level of iIncome earned will depend
on the portfolio during that year and may well be lower
than the previous year, In such crcumstances the
dividends paid may also be lower

Ordinary shares
“A” Ordinary shares

+32 5% to 1,123 Op per share,
+25 0% 10 1,022 5p per share,

The returns earned by Shareholders were largely influenced
by the increase in the net asset value, bul were also
affected by the change in the premium/discount at which
the two classes of shares sell to the NAV In the ¢ase of the
Ordinary shares the premium at which they sold rose from
3 6% to 8 0%, adding another 54 3p to the share price,

Premium to NAV B 0%
Discount to NAV 1 6%

however the ‘A’ Ordinary shares sold at a small discount,
1 6% at the year end, reducing its share price by 16 7p The
totat return earned by Shareholders dunng the course of
the year, which includes the dividends 1s shown in the table
overleal




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT «ontnued)

Attribution of Shareholders® Return

Ordinary shares

Change In the NAV +221 2p
Change 1n the premum/discount +54 3p
Dividends +12 5p
Shareholders® Return +288.0p

LONG-TERM RETURNS:

‘A" Ordinary shares

+2212p
-16 7p
+12 5p
+217 Op

(+33.9%) (+26.5%)

3 Years NAV Total Return +151 8%, Benchmark +20 0%, FTSE All-Share Index +66 3%

5 Years NAV Total Return +198 3%, Benchmark +34 2%

We have highlighled before that we assess the fong-term
performance of the Company an the basis of the five year
returns There are those who regard three years as the
duration of ‘long-term’ and for that reason we include the
three year numbers above However given that our stated
objective 1s to make money for Shareholders and given the
volatile nature of equities, It seems to us that five years 1s
the more appropnate time span to assess our returns
agamnst our objective As can be seen from the above
numbers, Witliam, john and their collcagues have done an
excellent job over the longer time span, and, as analysed
ahove, the long term returns calculated without the holding
i Ocean Wilsons are also excellent on both an absolute
and a relative basis

OCEAN WILSONS HOLDINGS LTD:

FTSE All-Share Index +54 2%

| should state here that, based in part on the five year
record and m part on the experience, skills and
commitment of the Manager in both portfolco management
and admimistration, the independent directors have had no
defficulty in confirmuing that 1t 1s 1n Shareholders® best
interests that the Manager remains 1n situ During the
course of the year, we reassessed the management fee
arrangements and have made certan adjustments,
changing the fee chargeable to 1% but reducing the fee
base from total assets to sharcholders’ funds (both exclude
the value of the holding in Ocean Wilsons)

The rewards stemming from patient, long-term investment.

Shareholders will be well aware of the large holding we
have in the shares of Ocean Wilsons Holdings Ltd Its value
started the year at £44 26 million, representing 22 5% of
the net asset value, during the course of the year itrose by
69 0% and ended the year worth £74 82 million, equivalent
to 30 0% of the net asset value IL has produced quite
spectacular returns for Hansa Trust Shareholders and 15 an
example of the benefits accruing from patient tong-term
investment

The holding i the company came about at the beginning of
1959 when Sir Walter Salomon, William’s father, acquired
contro! of Ocean Wilsons utilising an issue of *A’ Ordinary
shares in Scottish and Mercantde Investment Trust (as
Hansa Trust was then named} The transaction had a value
of about £2 5 millran and consisted of Wilson Sons and a
portfolio of cash and shares Thereafter Wilson Sons
disposed of all but its business in Brazil and, without
Infecting any new money into the company, it has grown

and become a quoted company worth today approximately
$900 mithon Two things have been of particular relevance
recently Firstly Brazil's economy, having promised so much
for so many years, 1s starting to deliver, the effect of the
surging growth of the Chinese econamy and s effect in
turn on the volume and price of many commodiies have
been a particular boon to Brazil and 1ts external trade
Wilson Sons - with its Brazilian port business - has been a
benehiciary, 1ts revenue has grown from $218 mdlion 1o
$334 malkon {+53%) and its net income from $24 5 mutlion
to 543 5 milion (+77%) over the last two years Secondly,
in May this year Witson Sons achieved a listing for rts
shares on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and on the Sao
Paulo Stock Exchange (in the form of Brazilian Depository
Receipts), thereby unlocking the value so long inherent
within the shares of s parent company, Ocean Wilsons
(itself bsted on the London Stock Exchange)




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (contnued

QOver the last 48 years the Company’s holding in Ocean
Wilsons has never changed There have been times when its
performance was not as good as the rest of the portfolio or
indeed the market But William, and before him his father,
always had great faith in 1t as a good, well managed business,
recognising that one day 1t would be possible to unlock its
value to the great henefit of Hansa Trust's Shareholders That
day arnved dunng 2007 | wouid like to commend Willam on
the very hard work that he put into Ocean Wilsons as a non-
executive director (remember, as stated above, the Manager
does not charge a management fee on the value of the
holding) and on the patience and courage he exhibited in
maintaining the holding over the years For the record its
value over the last 20 years is as follows

Value of Ocean Wilsons Holding-

1987 £3 7 million
1992 £4 7 million
1997 £8 3 million
2002 £6 5 million
2007 £74 8 milon

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Really large returns from nvestments are seldom made from
in and-out trading in a portfolig, nor from index{racking, the
pay day from long-term investments often comes after a long
wait, making the wait very worthwhile Such has been the
case here, being nght out of the Warren Buffet School as an
exampie of the benefits of patient, long-term investing

I should add that we have na plans to reduce the holding in
Ocean Wilsons - despite the large proporion of the
Company’s assets 1t accounts for While 1t may be said that we
may have too many of our eggs in that one basket, we -
through William - have taken a lot of trouble to look after the
basket and we will continue to do so However, it1simporiant
to point out that there s a great deal of risk inherent in the
holding - not because Ocean Wilsans 1s a paritcularty nisky
husiness but because the large size of the holding exposes us
1o those nisks 1t runs (Braziban politics, the Brazilan economy,
Brazihan trade, the Real etc)

31 July 2007 at 11.30am at the Washington Hote{, 5 Curzon Street, London W1) 5HE

The AGM will be held at the Washington Holel, 5 Curzon
Street, Londan W1} SHE (Green Park tube station, see map
on page 53) at 11 30am on Tuesday 31 july 2007 We
usuatly have a good turnout which 1s important to us
hecause 1t gives us, the Directors and Management, the

QUTLOOK
Short-term cautious, long-term butlish

chance 10 hear your views, concerns and suggestions So |
do urge as many Shareholders as possibke to join us for
the occaston at which John will give his presentation of the
events of the past year and the prospects for the current
one Please come and join us.

On re-reading what | wrote last year, | percoive that today’s
outfook has nat changed much, having summansed it then
as ‘short-term cautrous, long-term bulhish’ In as much as
the market rose approximatety 8% (a long-term average},
the caution has proven to be unwarranted but we reman of
the same view The bull market, in recovering from iis mid
March 2003 low, has more than doubled and 1s now In its
fifth year of expansion It must therefore be quite mature
and the signs are that st 1s Share prices continue to nse
against a background of rsing interest rates, of a
speculative frenzy m China, and of a large amount of
merger and acquisitions activity - the latter being a faely
classic indicator of market tops There 15 a lot of money
around and almost certainly central banks are concerned
that inflatign could nise further Whether the market will
correct suddenly and viciously, as it did in 1987, or rather
more gently, as Is usually the case, time alone will tell, but
decline at some pawntin time it roust surely do

However, John —in his report — 15 semewhat less cautious
tn the short-term and, having uttered that note of caution,
| should reiterate the long-term bullish case The global
economy 15 driven by an unusual set of circumstances the
mature economies are growing at reasonably good rates —
especially and importantly Europe and Japan after a period
of lackiustre performance — while many of the emerging
ecohomies — most notable BRIC (Brazil, Russia, India and
China), as 1t has been nicknamed, with ts combmed
population of 25 bilkkon people (40% of the world's
populatton) - are growing at really quite high rates




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (ontinued)
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Unusual also (s the fact that, what would have in the past
created very hugh rates of inflation, 15 not doing so because
the output of Chuna and India ts keeping a competitive id
on prices — all except commodities that s Technology, both
electronic and bio, 15 a tremendous aid to productivity,
another dampener of inflation

Although the investment remit of your Company confines
sts Investments largely to the shares of companies histed on
the London Stock Exchange, the background and prospects
for those companies s truly internabional The proportion of
sales of the comparues that make up the FTSE All Share
Index which octur overseas 15 circa 60% and the proportion
of profits 1s bkewise largely earned outside the UK By value
at least, the top compamnies are all multinational gants,
about half of the index s accounted for by four sectors -
banks (over 20%), ol & gas {tirca 15%) and healthcare and
telecom (Circa 15%) — most of whose companies are
mternational in thew scope of operations So, 1t can be
argued, the mternational outlook 1s more important than
the domestic one in assessing the UK market’s prospects
Given what 15 happening in the global economy - referred
to above - the outlook for the UK stockmarket seems set
fair in anything but the short-term

Smaller UK companes, 1n which we invest guste a lot, are
much more dependent on local matters The big event of
recent days s the change of pnme mimister While much
has been and continues to be written about Mr Blair, he 1s,
as they say, ‘history” What matters now 15 the political
teadership of Mr Brown He has the reputation of being very
hands-cn and dictatonal in his leadership style, he 15 a
strange muxture of old, red Labour and capitalist in s
policies, his naked ambition for the job suggests that the
role 1s more smpertant to him than the welfare of the
country, always a dangerous charactenstic in a politician,
in a quite different way he 15 as adept at spin and self
promotion as s Mr Blair Quite what it wall mean for the UK
1s impossible to predict but hes leadership creates a new
uncertainty for the economy

The UK economy has the City of London as its mam
cantnibutor Despite the dire prediction of the Financial
Tunes and other Europhiles - that the City would be
sidelined within Europe if we did not sign up to the Euro -
the City has gone from strength to strength and 1s now guite
widely recognised as the teading {imancial centre 1n the
world It brings a good flow of invisible earnings to the
balance of payments and creates a lot of well paid jobs
(some would argue excessively so}, it 1s a very important
part of the country’s tax base (a point not tost on Mr Brown

or the Treasury) The City itself is an symportant part of the
global economy Unless there 1s a long and sustained
global bear market, the City and thence the UK economy
should continue to prosper and that should provide a good
back cloth for smaller companies

Ulumately of course our prospects depend on ourselves As
in all fund management, the prospects depend on the
quality, experience and skills of those managing the
porifolios We are fortunate in having John, Willlam and
their colleagues batting on our behalf The mixture of
strategic mvestments, special situations and good sound
portfolio management has and should continue to serve us
well We are also fortunate that the Company 1s run much
as a proprietor's company 1s, removing the pressure to
produce short term results at the expense of much better
long-term returns Your Board and Management remain
buthsh about Hansa Trust over the longer-term

==

Alex Hammond-Chambers
Chairman
29 june 2007




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

for the year ended 31 March 2007

The Directors present their Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

i THE BOARD'S OBJECTIVES

The Board's primary cbjective 1s to achieve growth of Shareholders value over the medium to long-term

{ THE BOARD

Your Board consists of the following persons each of whom brings certan individusal and complementary skitls and

expenence to Lhe Board’s workings, as summarnsed below

Mr Hammond-Chambers {(Chairman)

Alex's career has been involved with portfolio management
and investment trusts, from which he brings — inter alia —
experience and understanching of mvestment policies,
strategies, stock seiectien and nisk management Born m
1942, he joimed the Board m 2002 He worked for vory &
Sime for 27 years, relinng as charman i 1991 He 15
charman of three wvesimenl trust companses and a
diector of two others, as well as a number of other
mveslment rompanies He has served as a chairman of the
Association of Investment Trust Compames and as a
governor of the NASD (NASDAQ)

Lord Borwick

jamie’s business ife has boen involved with the automotive
imndustry particularly and manufactuning generally, as well
as involvement with the property sector He brings his
expenence ol mdustry and properly to the Board's
stewardship Born i 1955, he jomned the Boaid in 1984
He s chairman, of Modec which makes battery powered
vans and routemobility Limited which finances
wheelchairs and scooters as part of the Motability Scheme
He s also a partner of Federated Investments LLP and an
wvestor i property i the UK and Flonda

Mr Salomon

William's carcer i investment banking and management
has involved working on and understanding corporate
strategies His own skdis and expenience are important 1o
the Board m developing and montornng mvestment i
specal investment themes and 1n strategic investments
Born in 1957, both a German and Brtish aitizen, he jomed
the Board in 1999 He s the senior partner of Hansa Capital
Partners LLP, chairman of New India Invesiment Trust PLC,
deputy chawrman of Ocean Wilsons Holdmgs Limited as well
as us listed subsidiary Wilson Sons Limited

Professor Wood

Geoffrey has great knowledge of economics generally and
monetary and fiscal policy issues specifically His skilis and
experience are important to the Board, particularly m
understandmg the effect of such poley ssues on the
markets Born in 1945, he jomed the Board in 1997 Hes
orofessor of Economics at Cass Business School, iy the City
of london, and a visiling Professarnial Fellow at the Centre
for Commercial Law at Queen Mary and Westlield College of
London University He has been wisiting professor al the
University of South Caralina and at the Natwonal Bureau for
Economic Research at Harvard In addimion he s and has
been an adwiser to a number of Central Banks and Gty of
London financeal firms




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS tontinued)

THE BOARD’S RESPONSBILITIES

for the year ended 31 March 2007

The Board 15 charged by the Sharehoiders with the responsibility for looking after the affairs of the Company It involves
the ‘STEWARDSHIF of the Company’s assets and habiities and ‘THE PURSUIT OF GROWTH OF SHAREHOLDER VALUE®
These responsibilities are discharged in many ways and are detaled below

STEWARDSHIP

In dischargsng its responsibilitres of Stewardship the Board
15 governed by the Companies Acts and the Financial
Services Authonty UKLA Listing Rules

Under UK Company Law the Directors are responsible for
ensuring that

*  Proper accounting records are kept, which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any iime the financeal
position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the Fmancial Statements comply with the
Companes Act 1985

*  The assets of the Company are safeguarded and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularnties

» The Directors” Report and other information included
in the Annual Report 1s prepared in accordance with
company law in the UK They are also responsible for
ensuring that the Annual Report includes information
required by the Listing Rules of the Financal Services
Authonty

+ The Company has effective internal control systems,
which are designed to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintamed, that the financial information
on which the bustness decisions are made and which
are 1ssued for publication is reliable Such a system of
internat control can provide only reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against matenal mis-statement
or loss

+  The Group Financial Statements for each financial year
are prepared In accordance with IFRS, as adopted by
the EU and have elected to prepare Company finantiat
statements on the same basis The Company and
Group Financiat Statements are required by law and
IFRS as adopted by the EU to present fairly the
financial position of the Company and the Group and
the performance of the Group for that period In
preparing these financial statements the Directors are
required to

= select suitable accounting pohoes and apply them
consistently,

= make judgements and estimates that

reasonable and prudent,

are

¢ stale whether they have been prepared m
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

s prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis, unless it «s nappropriate to presume
that the Company and Group will continue in
business

tnder the Financiat Services Authonty, UKLA Listing Rules
- Comtnned Code the Board is responsible for

*  Disclosing how it has apphed the principles and
complied with the provisions of the Combined Code or
where not to explain the reasons for divergence

*  Rewiewing the effectiveness of the Company’s system
of inlernai controls

Internal Controls

The Combined Code requires the Directors to review the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal controls
The Directors, through the procedures outhined below,
keeps the system of internal controls under seview The
Board has wdentified nisk management controls n the key
areas of business objectives, accounting, compliance,
operations and secretarial as areas for the extended
review

The Board recognises its ultimate responsituhity for the
Company’s system of internal controls and for monitoring
its effectiveness 1n order to perform this responsibility the
Board receives regular reports on all aspects of internal
control (imcluding financial, operational and compliance
controls, nsk management and relationships with external
service providers), the Board will authorise necessary
achion In respanse to any sigaificant failings or weaknesses
tdentified by these reports However, it must be noted that
this system 15 designed to manage rather than eltrminate
the nisk of faillure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenial mis statement or loss




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ontnued

Compliance with the provisions of the Combined Code

The Financial Reporting Council has confirmed that membet
companies of the Association of Investment Companies
(‘AICY) who follow the AIC's Corporate Governance Guide
for Investment Compames (‘AIC Guide”) will be meeting
their obligations in relation to the Combined Code and the
Listing Rules The Board confirms, except where stated
below, that it follows the Combined Code, except for those
areas which the AIC Guide identifies as being irrelevant in
anen self-managed investment company namely the role
of the Chief Executive, Executive Directors remuneration
and the need for an internal audit function

The Board confirms with the exception of the composition
of the Audit Comnittee as detailed on page 15, that it has
i all respects followed the AIC Guide i meeting its
obligattons under the Listing Rutes and the Combined
Code

The AIC Guide has 21 pninciples, the vast majonity of which
the Board of the Company has been following for many
years However, modern corporate governance requives
hoards not only govern therr companies sensibly and
responsibly, but that they are seen to do so Hence thereis
a requirement to follow a check bist of prmciples, which in
our case 15 drawn from the AIC Guide They include

The Board
+  The Chairman should be independent

Mr Hammond-Chambers has been assessed by the
Board to be an independent director

¢ A majonty of the Board should be independent of the
Manager

With the exception of Mr Salomon, who s employed by
the Manager, all of the other board members are
considered to be independent Both Professor Wood
and Lord Borwick, wha have served as Directors of the
Company for more than ning years, have been
assessed as independent by virtue of their personal
characteristics, their expenence, thew financal
dependence and therr directonal perfoarmance

¢ Directors should be elected for a fixed term of no
more than three years. Nomination for re-election
should not be assumed but be based on disclosed
procedures

All Diectors resign at each Annual General Meeting
and where appropriate offer themseclves for re-
election

for the year ended 31 March 2007

There should be fult disclosure of information about
the Board

Ablography of each member of the Board ¢an be found
on page 8

The Board should have a policy on tenure which is
disclosed in the Annual Report

The Board has determined that neither age nor length
of service necessarily compromise independence,
rather that expenence and knowledge gamed in
service normally  strengthen  independent
performance All Directors have contracts for services,
detaills of which are comtained Iin the Dwectors’
Remuneration Report on page 32

The Board should aim to have a balance of skills and
experience, ages and length of service

The Board regularly reviews 118 requirements to direct
the affairs of the Company Where and when
appropnate, indivduals are 1dentified who would
strengthen the Board and put forward as candidates
for board membership

The Board should undertake a formal and rigorous
annual evaluatien of its own performance and that of
its commuttees and individual directors

The Board undertakes a formai far-reaching evatuation
every three years The other years the Board, at 1ts
strategy meeting, carnes out an evaluation of the
mdependence of each Director, the progress of the
actions resulting from the previous reviews and of any
new ideas for improving the returns to Sharcholders
thraugh improving the effectiveness of the Board The
Chairman 1s evalualed by William Salomon on behalf of
the Board

Directors’ Remuneration should reflect their duties
and responsibiiities and the value of therr time spent

The level of Directors’ fees 1s reviewed on a regular
basis relative to other comparable companies and in
the light of the Directors’ duties and responsibilities
and the value of the teme committed to the interests of
the Company

The Independent Directors should take a lead in the
appointment of new directors and the process should
be disclosed in the Annual Report

The identification and appointment of a new board
member s a matter for the whole Board The Chairman
would take the lead in all of the processes leading to
the appointment of a new director
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS tontinued

e  Directors shoutd be offered relevant training and
mduction

When a new directos 15 appointed, he or she attends an
induction seminar held by the Company Secretary and
the Chanman Directors are also provided on a regular
hasts with mdustry, regulatory and investment updates
Drirectors regularly participate in industry seminars and
training courses where appropriate

Board meetings and the relationship with the Manager

« Boards and Managers should operate i a supportive,
co-operative and open eavironment

The Board and Manager operate mn an environment of
mutual trust and respect both, at the formal board
meetings and dunng the year when ad-hoc
communications are instigated by either party

*  The pnimary focus at regular Board Meetings should be
the review of the investment performance and
associated matters such as geanng, asset allocation,
marketing/investor relations, peer group information
and industry 1ssues

At the regular Board meetings, discussions are held and
reports and papers are 1eviewed, all of which cover the
above mentioned aspects

« Boards should give sufficient attention to overall
strategy

The Board holds an annual strategy meeting vath the
Manager to discuss the Company’s future investment
and corporate strategies

» The Board should regularly review both the
performance of and contractual arrangements with, the
Manager

The Board formally reviews the performance of the
Manager each quarter, at which Board meeting the
Manager presents a written report At the annual review
of the Manager alt aspects of its service to the Boand are
reviewed, including and particularly the long-term
returns to Shareholders and the terms and conditions of
tfs contract

» The Board should agree policies with the Manager
covening key operational issues

Within the agreement between the Manager and the
Company, service levels are defined in addition the
Board determines certasn mvestment restriciions and
guidehnes for the Manager, on which it reports on a
monthly basis

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Boards should monitor the leve! of share pnee discount
or premium {1f any) and, if desirable, take action to
reduce it

The Board continually monitors the levels of discount
and premsurn and comments on it at its regular meetings

The Board should monitor and evaluate the other
sevice providers

The Board, through its Audit Commitiee, recewves
independent reports from the auditors of the mam
services providers, these reports are called FRAG 21/94
reports (soon to be AAF 01/06)

Shareholder Communications

*

The Board should regularly montor the shareholder
profile of the company and put 1n place a system for
canvassing shareholder views and for communicating
the Board’s views to Shareholders

The Board reviews the shareholder profite at its regular
meetings The Comgpany, through the Manager, has
regular contact with its institutional Shareholders The
Board supports the pnnciple that the Annual Geneial
Meeting should be used to communicate with all
Shareholders and promotes its website 1o them The
Company Secretary regularly recewves and handles
communications from Shareholders These
communications are recewved by lefter, email or
telephone Any matter requiring the Board’s attentionis
referred to 1t for action

The Board shoutd normally take respons:bility for, and
have a dwect avolvement i, the content of
communications regarding major corporate 1Ssues even
if the manager 15 asked to act as spokesman

The Board 1s responsible for all major corporate 1ssues
and as such would have a directinvolvement sn both the
issue and the contents of s communications

The Board should ensure that shareholders are
provided with sufficient information for them to
understand the nsk reward balance to which they are
exposed by holding the shares

The Board through the 1ssuance of the Annual Report,
Interim Report and Monthly Fact Sheet aims to ensure
that both Sharehotders and prospective Shareholders
are made fully aware of the investment amms and
benchmark of the Company, the types of mvestments
the Company 15 likely to enter mto, the disposition of
those investments 1n the portfolto, the gearmg of the
Company and the perod over which its performance
should be judged
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS tontinued)

| IN PURSUIT OF GROWTH OF SHAREHOLDER VALUE

for the year ended 31 March 2007

The Board

L2

Contracts out the admimistration and management of
the Company.

The Board, i contracting out the admimistralion and
management of the Company, seeks to engage
organisaltons which can provide the relevant tevels of
experience and expertise at an acceptable cosl

Montors third party suppliers, performance and costs

The Board, at its regular meefings reviews reports
prepared by both the Manager and the Adminsstrator
which enables it to monitor the performance and costs
of the third party supphers to the Company

Monitors rnvestment performance and nsks

The Board, reviews reports prepared by the Manager at
its regufar meetings which enabte 1t to monitor the
imvestment performance and risks

Determines investment strategy, guidelines and
restrictions

The Board, determines the investment sirategy n
comunction with the Manager The strategy 15
monitored at the regular meetings and relinements
made to it as required, with formal review at the Board's
annual strategy meeting

The Board, issues formal imvestment gwdelines and
reslrictions and cormphance with these are reported by
the manager’s compiiance officer on a regutar basis

Determines gearing levels and capital preservation
through the use of hedgmng instruments

The Board, acting on advice from the Manager,
determmes the maximum level of bonowings that the
Company wili undertake at the time of borrowmg The
Company has entered inlo a short-tevm loan faciity with
the Alied Insh Bark, currently the maximum level of the
lfacility &5 £20,000,000 The Board has approved the
utiisation of hedging instruments 1n order to provide
the partfolio with a bmited degree of protect:on from
extremne market declines

Monstors the share discount.

The Board regularly monitors the levet of discount and,
whilst it has the option io re-puschase shares, 1t
considers that the best means of attaining a good rating
for the shares 15 to concentrale on inCreasing
shareholder returns

Determines the level and timing of dividends payable
to Shareholders.

The Board's policy ts to disinbute 1o Shareholders the
mayonty of the Company's mcome by way of a modest
intenim dividend, normatly paid in December each year
and a final dividend paid as soon as 15 practcally
possible following the approvat by Shareholders at the
Company’s Annual General Meeting




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS contnues)

for the year ended 31 March 2007

| BUSINESS REVIEW, RISKS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The review of the performance and devetopment of the business, including an analysis using the KPI's listed below, 15

given In the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 7

Risks

The Board considers that the nisks the Shareholders face
can be divided into external and mternal nisks

External nisks to shareholders and their returns are those
that can severely influence the investment environment
withun which the Company operates, include economic
recession, dechning corporate profitabitity, nsing inflation
and mterest rates and excessive stockmarket speculation
At its recent strategy meeting the Board highlighted as
current portfolio nsks a reduction in corporate profits
caused by interest rate increases, a slowmg of low cost
productiona China and India, nsing inflation caused by UK
pubkic expenditure over-spending, UK political instability,
instability in the Private Equity and Hedge Fund sectors and
the strengthemng of the Brazhan Real against the US
Bollar

The mitigation of these risks 15 achieved by sensthle stock
and sector diversification

internal rnisks to shareholders and their returns are
porifoho {stock and sector selection and concentration),
balance sheet (gearnng) and/or administrative mis-
management In particular the Board has identified the
exposure to Ocean Wilsons Holdings Limsted as a notably
targe single investment nsk In respect to the nsks
associated with adminstratton, contiuing compliance with
5 842 1CTA 1988 would have the greatest impact sf it ceased
to be avalable to the Company A monthly review i1s
performed to ensure that the Company 15 st comphant
with the key aspects of s 842, with any discrepancies being
reported to the Board Al senice providers (o the Company
are regularly reviewed

The mitigation of these nisks of mis-management s effected
by investment restrichons and guidebnes and through
reviews at Board Meetings

The Board considers the nsks 10 the Company's two share
prices, apart from those mentioned above, to include the
level of discount or premium  The Board monilors the
discount/premium and may take action when appropriate
However, given the Company's stated objeclive of
incyreasing shareholder value over the medium to long
term, the Board does not consider short-term net asset
value or share price volatilty to be a matenal nsk to iong-
term Sharehoiders

The Board has opted for the early adoption of IFRS 7
Financial Instruments Disclosures Detasds of how the
prncipal nsks ansing from financial snstruments are
managed have been summarised in Note 21 on Pages 49
and 52

Key Performance Indicaters ("KPI*)

The Board reviewed the rnisks from the pomnt of view of the
tong term shareholder, the principal one heing that over
the long-term {which we determined was five years) he/she
did not make a return from his/her investment n the
Company The key performance indicator, aganst which
the Board compared Shareholders’ share prce and
dividend returns, 1s the benchmark, which 1s 1n essence a
proxy for the return from a risk free, five year investment
Other KPIs include the net asset value reiurns against those
of the benchmark, against the Company’s peer group
average returns and against the market (the FTSE All-Share
Index) and the total expense ratio in relation to the returns
that Shareholders have received The numbers are
computed on a gne, three, five and ten year basis  five
years bewng the better time period over which o judge the
progress of the Company
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continueq)

t) Shareholder - Totol Return to 2007

A comparison is made between the ‘Total Return’ of each class of shares to that of the three-year average rolling rate of
return of a five year UK Government bond plus 2% with interest re invested sems-annually (the Company’s Benchmark)
This companson :llustrates how Shareholders' relurns compared with the returns of the benchmark

2007 2004 2002 1997
(1 year) (3 years) (5 years) (10 years)
Share Price
Ordinary shares 34.10% 235 55% 294 40% 449 34%
‘A" non-voting Ordinary shares 26.59% 209 14% 262 65% 437 57%
Company's benchmark 6.67% 19 97% 34 23% 76 32%
i1} Company Returns
These compansons are used to deterrmine the effectiveness of the investment strategy and of the Manager
2007 2004 2002 1997
(1 year) (3 years) (5 years) (10 years)
Net Asset Value 2B 41% 151 84% 198 33% 358 54%
Absolute comparison
Company's Benchmark & 67% 19 57% 34 23% 76.32%
Relative comparison
FTSE All-Share Index 11.52% 66 27% 54 15% 116 24%
Peer Group Average 18 1% 93 8% 102 4% 200 8%

i) Discount/ (Premium)

A comparisanis made between the discounts/ (premiums) of the Company's two classes of shares and those ol the

Company's Peer Group and of the AIC Average

2007 2004 2002 1997

(1 year) {3 years) (5 years) (10 years)

Ordinary shares (8 0%) 18 0% 17 2% 7 6%
‘A’ nen voting Qrdinary shares 16% 18 8% 17 9% 13 3%
Peer Group Average 7.2% 12 8% 11 1% 11 0%
AIC IC Average 65% 11 4% 11 0% 8 0%

iv) Expense ratio to 2007

A companson s made between the level of expenses (admimistrative and management) of the Company and the Net
Asset Returas (both annualised) in order to assess the value for money that Shareholders receive

2007 2004 2002 1997

{1 year) (3 years) {5 years) (10 years)

Total expense ratio per annum 0 96% 101% 108% 1 08%
NAV Total Return per annum 28.41% 50 61% 3967% 35 85%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS {continued)

¢ BOARD POLICIES

for the year ended 31 March 2007

The Board consists entively of non-executive directors, it
delegates the day fo day implementation of its policies to
third party service praviders The Board has contractually
delegated to external organisations the management of the
investment portfolio the custodial services which include
safeguarding of the assets, and the day fo day accounting
and company secretanal requirements Each of these
contracts is only entered into after proper consideration of
the guality and cost of services which are reviewed and
monitored erther by the Board or its Committees

| BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board's Committeas and the mamn service provider
contracts are detatled below and any additional
requirements which the Board is required to carry out 1n
fulfilment of its obligations under the Companies Acts or
Listing Rules

Detalls of the Directors’ attendance at Board, Strategy and
Audit Committee meetings are n the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 32

Audit Committee

The Directers cansider that all members of the Board
should be members of the Audit Committee in arder for
them to fulfil their responstbibities as Directors of the
Company and s¢ the Audit Commiltee consists of all four
Directors and Mr Tesdemnan, a former director whose own
skills and expenence strengthen the Commitiee The
Commuttee 1s chaired by Alex Hammond-Chambers The
Smith Report’s guwdance to the Combined Code
emphasises the need for 'Audit Committee arrangements to
be proportionate to the task’ With such a small Board, st
was deemed both proportionate and practical to involve all
Directors in its workings even though Wilkkam Salomen 1s
not regarded as being independent The Company's Audit
Committee meets representatives of the Investment
Manager and its Compliance Officer, who report as 1o the
proper conduct of business in accordance with the
regulatory environment m which both the Company and the
investment Manager operate The Company's Auditors also
attend this Commuttee and report on thewr work procedures,
the quabty and effectiveness of the Company’s accountng
records and their findings in relation to the Company’s
statutory audit The responsibilities of the Audit Commuttee
include review of internal financial controls, accounting
policies, financial statements, management contract,
Auditors’ appointment and remuneration (no non-audit
services are provided by the Auditors) and the value of the
unquoted mvestments The Board has issued the
Commattee with Terms of Reference which are available
from the Company Secretary at the registered address of
the Company

Nomination Committee

The Board as a whole fulfills the function of the Nomination
Committee The Company’s Articles of Association reguire
newly appointed Directors to submit themselves for
election by Shareholders at the next Annual General
Meeting after appointment and that they will be subject to
re-election at intervals of no more than three years
However, the Board has determined that all Directors will
retire and offer themselves for re-clection each year at the
Annual General Meeting

Management Engagement Committee

The Board, with the exception of Witham Salomon, fulfilts
the function of this Committee The level of management
fees and the level of service provided are reviewed on a
regular basis

Remuneration Committee

The Board as a whole fulfills the function of a Remuneration
Comm#iee and considers that the specific appointment of
such a committee 1s not appropnate for an (investment trust
eompany The tevel of Direclors’ fees is reviewed on a
regular basis in the hight of theu dubies and also relative to
other comparabte companies
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[LSERVICE PROVIDERS

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Investment Manager

Hansa Capital Partners LLP charged an nvestment
management fee at an annual rate of 0 75% of the net
assets of the Company, tbefore any borrowings) but after
deducting the jnvestment in Ccean Wilsons Holdings
Limited on which no fee is payable Under the terms of the
investment management agreement with Hansa Capital
Partners LLP the investment management fee was reduced
by the amount the Company was charged under its
admimstration agreement with BNP Panibas Fund Services
UK Limited The terms of the investment management
agreement permits either party to terminate the agreement
by gving 10 the other not less than 12 months’ notice or
such shorter penod that 1s mutually acceptable The
mvestment management fee outstanding at the year end
amounted to £101,336 excluding VAT (2006 £92,062) in
Hs annual assessment, the Board has concluded that,
because of the calibre and commitment of the whole
management team to the Company and the excellent long-
term returns to Shareholders 1t has produced, it 1s 1n the
best Iinterest of Shareholders that the Manager remain in
situ

With effect from 1 Apni 2007 the investmeni management
fee has been changed to 19% of the net asset value of the
Company, after deducting the investment of Ocean Wilson
Holdings Limited on which no fee s payable In addition
the managemaent fee 1s not to be reduced by costs charged
by the administrators By way of a companson the fees
chargeable for the year ended 31 March 2007 on the new
basis would have heen £1,631,000, an increase of
£518,000 Dunng the year ended 31 March 2007 the
Directors reviewed regularly all aspects of the performance
of Hansa Capital Partners LLP as the Company’s Investment
Manager

BOARD STATEMENTS AND DiSCLOSURES

Auditors

RSM Robson Rhodes [LP, (‘Robson Rhades’) has
announced its intention to merge its audit practice with
that of Grant Thornton UK LLP with eftect from 1 July 2007
Accordengly a resolution ta appoint erther Robson Rhodes
or (subject to such merger having completed) its successor
firm, Grant Thornton UK LLP, as auditors of the company
and to authanse directors to fix their remuneration will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Company Secretary

Secretanal services were provided by Hansa Capnal
Partners LLP at an annual rate of £40,000, excluding VAT
(2006 £40,000) With effect from 1 Apri 2007 the annual
rate has been increased to £100,000, excluding VAT

Plan Manager

The Company offer 1SA PEP MileStone and Saving Scheme
Plans which are administered by Close Investments
Limited

Administrater

The Company has appointed BNP Paribas Services UK
Limsted as its Admsmistrators

In accordance with the Company Acts and Financial Services Authonty UKLA Listing Rules the Board 1s required to make
varnous statements and disclosures to Shareholders They are

Appointment of the Investment Manager

As explained earlier in the Annual Report, the Directors
have concluded that it would be in the best interests of
Shareholders for the Company to continue the appointment
of the Investment Manager on the revised terms of
appointment

Significant changes in the activities of the Company

There has been no significant change 1n the actwities of the
Company and s subsidiary {the ‘Group’) duning the year
and the Directors anticipate that the Group will continue
to operate in the same manner during the current year
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Results and Dwvidends

for the year ended 31 March 2007

The results attributable to Shareholders for the year and the transfer to reserves are shown on page 36

The dvidends paid and proposed are as follows

Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares
intenm paid of 3 5p (2006 3 5p) per share
Final proposed of 9 Qp (2006 paid 6 25p) per share

Total dividends

2007 2006
£000 £000

840 840
2,160 1,500
3,000 2,340

The final dividend will, f approved, be pawd on 10 August 2007 to Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary Shareholders

registered at the close of business on 20 june 2607

Directors’ Interests

The present members of the Board are shown on page 8, all of whom retired at the last Annuat General Meeting and were
duly re elected The Board’s policy)is that it 1s appropnate for all members to retire annualtly at the AGM and therefare Mr
Hammond Chambers, Lord Borwick, Mr Salomon and Professor Wood will retive agan and offer themselves for re election
at the forthcoming AGM  The interests of Directors and their families in the Company at 31 March 2007 are shown below

Ordinasy ‘A’ non voting Ordinary Mature of
shares of 5p each shares of 5p earh interest

2007 2006 2007 2006
Mr Hammond-Chambers 500 500 7,600 7.600 Beneficial
Lord Borwick 2,200 2,200 - - Beneficial
Mr Salomon 2,113,219 2,113,219 98,700 98,700 Beneficial
Professor Wood 1,000 5,000 9,700 - Beneficial

Mr Salomon is semor partner of Hansa Capital Partners LLP Fees payable inclusive of VAT to Hansa Caprtal Partners LLP,
amounted to £1,307,737 (2006 £1,034,474} During the year, na rnights to subscribe were granted to, or exercised by
Directors, their spouses or infant children Since 31 March 2007, Lord Borwick, has purchased 22,478 QOrdinary shares

and 16,376 ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares

Directors’ Training

Any new Director appointed attends an induchon seminar
held by the Company Secretary and the Chairman Directors
are also provided on a regular basis with industry,
regulatory and investment updates Directors regularly
particpate in industry seminars and traming courses where
appropriate

Fixed Asset Investments

The market value of the Group's investments at 31 March
2007 was £243,641,000 (2006 £202,099,000) Taking
these nvestments at this valuation, the net assets
attnbutable to each Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary
share amounted o 1,039 4p at 31 March 2007 (2006
818 2p}

Publication of Financial Statements on a Website

The Financial Statements are made avalable on the
Hanseatic Group website www hansagrp com as well as
www closetnvestments com website, which 1s a website
mamtained by the Company’s ISA, PEP, Milestone and
Savings Scheme Plan Manager The work carned out by the
Auditors does not involve consideration of the mamtenance
and integrity of either wehsite, and accordingly, the
Derectors and the Auditors accept no responsibility for any
changes that may have occurred to the Financal
Statements since they were ymitially presented on the
websites Visitors to the websites need to be aware that
the legislation sn the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of the Financial Statements may differ from
legisiation in their jurisdiction
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Substantial Sharehotders

for the year ended 31 March 2007

As at 22 june 2007 the following interests i the Ordinary shares of the Company which exceeded 3% of the voting 1ssued

share captial of that class are

Nicholas B Dill, jr & Codan Trust Company Limited (note}

Puddle Dock Nominees Limited

No of % of
voting shares voting shares

4,096,350 5120
310,173 388

Note Of the shares held by Nicholas B Dill, jr & Codan Trust Company Limuted, Mr W H Saloman 1s interested in 2,048,175
and Mrs ] A V Townsend 1s interested in 2,048,175, each holding representing 25 60% of the voting share capital. In
addition, Mr W H Salomon has further interests in the Company's share, the tatal interest is detailed in the paragraph

Directors’ Interests above

Creditors’ Payment Policy

While the Company does not follow a formal code, it 1s the
Company's continuing policy to pay amounts due to
creditors as and when they become due Payments relating
t6 invesiment transactions are made i accordance with
the settlement practices of the relevant exchange At 31
March 2007 outstanding trade creditors amounted to £NIl
(2006 £NI)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabitity Insurance

During the year the Company purchased and mamtained
tratubty insurance farits Directors and Officers

Going Concern

The Directors, having made retevant enquinies, are satisfied
that it 1s appropriate to prepare financial statements on a
gommg concern basis as the net assets of the Group consist
of securities, the majonty of which are traded on
recognised stock exchanges

Status and Activities

During the year under review the Company has operated as
an investment company, under Section 266 of the
Compares Act 1985 and in compliance with Section 842 of
the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 The Company
has receved approval as an investment trust for the year
ended 31 March 2006 The Directors are of the opiion that
the Company has subsequently directed sts affars so as to
enable 1t 10 conunue to obtam Inland Revenue approval as
such There has been nosignificant change in the actividies
of the Company and 1ts subsidiary (the *Group’) durisg the
year and the Directors anticipate that the Group will
cantinue to operate in the same manner during the current
year

Audit Information

The Durectors confirm that, so far as they are aware having
made such enquiries and having taken such steps as they
consider they reasanably ought, they have provided the
Auditors with all the information necessary for them to be
able to prepare thewr report In doing so each Director has
made mmself aware of any imformation relevant to the audit
and established that the Company's Auditors are aware of
that information The Directors are not aware there (s any
infarmation refevant to the audit of which the Company's
Auditors are unaware

18




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS tontinued

| ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

for the year ended 31 March 2007

A special resolution relating to the following item will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

(@} Authorty to Re purchase ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeung seeking shareholder approvat for the
renewal of the authority for the Company to re-purchase
s own 'A’ non voting Ordinary shares  The Board beheves
that the ability of the Company 1o re purchase its own “A’'
non-voling Ordinary shares in the market wilt potentially
benefit all equity Shareholders of the Company The re
purchase of ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares at a discount to
the underlying net asset value (NAV') will enhance NAV
per share of the remaining equity shares and 1t may also
enable the Company to address more effectively any
imbalance between supply and demand for the Company’s
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares

The Company’s Artictes are drafted in such a way that the
Company may from time to time purchase and cancel its
own shares However, company law requires that
shareholders’ approval to re-purchase shares be sought At
the Annual General Meeting the Company will therefore
seek the authornty to purchase up to 2,398,400 ‘A’ non-
voung Ordinary shares (representing 14 99% of the
Cempany’s 1ssued *A* non-veting Ordinary share capial,
the maximum permitied under the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authorty) at a price not less than Sp per
share (the nominal value of each share) and not more than
5% above the average of the middle-market quotations for
the five business days precedmg the day of purchase The
authonty being sought, the full text of which can be found
i Resalution 9.1n the Notice of Meeting, will last until the
date of the next Annual General Meeting

It 15 proposed that the Company uses its realised capitat
reserve to re-purchase shares in the market The decisian
as 1o whether the Company re-purchases any shares will be
at the absolute discretion of the Board Any shares
purchased will be cancelled The Directors consider that
the creation of a facility to re purchase the Company’s own
‘A" non-voting Ordinary shares is in the interests of
Shareholders as a whole and unammously recommend all
Shareholders to vote in favour by ticking the approprnate
boxes on the enclosed form of proxy The proxy form should
be returned to the Company's Registrar as soon as
possibie, but in any event s0 as to arreve no later than 438
hours before the ime of ithe Annuzl General Meeting

PFE v

By order of the Board
Hansa Capital Partners LLP
Secretary

29 june 2007
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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT

| BACKGROURD

The twelve months under review was generally a good
period for investors and equities made strong advances
even though the base rates of all the world’s major central
banks from the US Federal Reserve through the European
Central Bank and the Banks of England and Japan, are higher
now than they were at the beginning of the year Bird flu
did not develop into a major pandemic and now rarely
appears in the headlines God atso blessed the US with an
gnusually bemgn hurricane season in the emerging
markets, many feared that the economies of China and India
must soon overheat, but in the event, both continued to
grow at rates near 10% without needing 1o slam on the
brakes from a geo-political perspective, there were no
major terronst atiacks on the western world, although Iran's
pursuit of a nuclear weapon capability 15 alarmmg In
lanuary 2006, there were fears that West Texas intermediate
crude could reach $100 a barrel Durng the Lebanon
conflict, it touched $77 a barrel, but the price has now
retreated Meanwhile, US interest rates are on hold and
there 15 talk that the US housing market may have seen the
worst of 1ts setback without tnggerng an economic
downturn Amereica’s twin deficits continued, but global
capital flows were more than adeguate to finance them

Let's take a look at some of the main investment themes of
2006 The single biggest drver in equity markets at the
moment s the high level of company profits and free cash
flow relative to the cost and avadability of debt The
combnnation of these two trends account for the upsurge (n
merger and acquisition activity, as mvesiors and companies
attempt to arbitrage away the valuation gap between
earnings yields and the cost of capital The value of
compames laken private reached record levels in 2006,
almost trebling since 2004 Citigroup calculates that the
overall UK equity market shrank by about 4 1% or roughly
£44bn 0 2006, double the rate of de-equitisation of 2005
and four times the figure for 2004 While almast £50bn of
new equity was introduced to the UK market through intial
public offerings and secondary issues last year, a3 record
£115bn was ‘retired” Cash takeovers accounted for about
£60bn of this, a nse of 80% on 2005, while a further £56bn
was taken out of circulation via share buy-backs and the
payout of special dividends

With the threat of a takeover, many compantes are tending
to be managed to maximise cash flow, which in turn
provides the funding for igher dividends and growing share
buyback programmes Companies are emulating the tactics
of private equity m this quest for balance sheet efficiency,
replacing ‘expensive’ equity with ‘cheap’ debt De-

equitisation s symptomatc of the credit cycle, which makes
debt so cheap and avallable that private equity investors
are encouraged to use it to buy corporate earnings flows,
narticularly if they are predictable £ven corporate chief
executrves are increasingly bidding for compames that are
far bigger than their own, thanks to the avaitabtlity of cheap
and plentiful debt The pattern of recent months shows
private equity and corporate buyers are tasgeting FTSE 100
comparves bke Samsbury and Alhance Boots, as well as
FISE 250 companes, whereas 1n 2005 and 2006 most of
the action was m the mid-cap sector The fear 15 that top
much money 1s chasing too few assets, with the nisk that
both the deal structures and deal quality decline, creating
bigger risk There are fears that the growing flood of private
equity deals are being financed by easv lending or
‘covenant-lite’ loans Unlike traditronal loans, these do not
include legal covenamts that typically allow lenders to
moneor a borrower, and demand repayment or seize control
of a company if that company underperforms These new
type of loans have allowed the huge amounts of money
being raised by buyout firms to be turned into highly
leveraged takeover war chests Private Equity Intelligence
estimates that £67bn was raised by UK private equity firms
alone lastyear, while some £452bn was raised globally The
fears are twofold These loans have heiped fuel an
indischiminate bull runin the stockmarket, while there 1s the
potential for more damaging defaults on these loans owing
to the lack of intervention and controt by the banks The
main risk ko M&A 15 a sigriflicanL nse in the cosl of borrowing
and a fall in the level of corporate profitability and free cash
flow

This takes us on neatly to the second investment theme of
2006, namely nfrastructure Once regarded as dull, this
sector has new-found allure Investors with farge long-term
llabiitses like penston funds are attracted by the steady,
long-dated, low-nsk and sometimes regulated vyield
available from utilities and other infrastructure assets Not
surprsingly investment banks are rushing to meet the surge
in demand by raising new funds, the biggest being Goldman
Sach’s £3 3bn infrastructure fund

Finally, the emvironment and the ssue of global warming
hecame an increasingly hot topic, highlighted by the Stern
report We could be at the beginming of a movement where
environmentat 1ssues will shift from the fringes of socially
responsible investment into mainstream asset management
and corporate behaviour
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| OVERALL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the capital and revenue
returns per Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordmnary shares
amounted to 231p or 28 2%, while the share price of the
Ordinary shares rose by 32 5% as they traded at a premsum
to their net asset value and the share price of the ‘A’ non

voting Qrdinary rose by 25 0% This compares with a nse of
6 7% i the Company's benchmark and a total return on
the FESE All-Share Index of 11 5% The two largest positive

| SECTOR REVIEW

contributors to the 231p per share nse were Qcean Wilsons
Holdings Lemited 131 5p and Cathedral 13 1p

We ended the half year at September with cash funds and
fixed deposits of £21 4m and we finished the full year end
March with cash funds and bank deposits of £6 1m, largely
as a result of investing 1n a number of unloved ‘mega caps’
like BG Group, HSBC and GlaxoSmithKline

Portfolio weighting One year performance
Sector weighting and performance - {Time Weighted) at 31 March 2007 to 31 March 2007
% %
Strategic 239 739
Smalter Cap/AIM 216 163
Closed Life Funds 93 49
Natural Resources 88 62
Property 63 251
Large Cap 66 (5 5)
Utiletzes 64 346
Insurance 46 338
Cash Funds 19 25
Mid-Cap 42 281
Cash 04 -
| STRATEGIC
Opening Net New Closing Added
Valug Investment Value Value
Portfolio Movements £44 3m {E1 Om) £74 8m £315m
Portfolio Weighting 29 9%
Portfolio Performance 73 9%
Contribution to overall total return of 231p 131 5p
Major Contributor-
COcean Wilsons Holdings 131 5p

Qcean Wilsons Holdings Ltd (+73 9%} announced a strong
set of full year figures for the end of December 2006, with
the Group's core businesses performing well and
significant growth in the port operations and logistic
businesses For the first time, the port operations division
exceeded towage as the Group's largest division, while
there was a recovery In the Group's margins following

several years of decline The Brazihan Government has
maintained a favourable environment for busimess
activities through the adoption of a conservative economic
policy, which has {ed to greater stabibity in the economy
and an expectation of less volatility in the future
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On 2ad Apnil the Board of Ocean Wilsons Holdings 1td
announced the proposed imitial public offenng of Wilson
Sons Ltd, the owner of the Group's Brazihan business,
which the Board believes provides an opportunity to
enhance the value of the Brazilian business and realise
value for shareholders in Ocean Wilsons Holdings Lid
Witsen Sons Limited 15 one of the targest providers of
integrated port and mantime logistics and supply chain
solutions with 170 years i the Brazdian market It has a
national network and provides a complete set of serwices to
particapants innternational trade in the port and mantime
sectors It has renewable, 25-year term concessions to
operate two of the main contamer port terminals in Braal
Tecon Rio Grande, 1n the Port of Rio Grande, Rio Grande do
Sul and Tecon Salvador, i the Port of Salvador, Bahia The
Board of Ocean Wilsons Holdings Ltd and the Board of
Wilsan Sons Ltd decided to proceed with the flotation of
Wilson Sons Ltd on the Sao Paulo Stock Exchange and the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange The flatation involved the
sate of 15 & millson shares by Ocean Wilsons Holdings Lid,
resulting i gross proceeds to Ocean Wilsons Holdings Ltd
of approximately $180 8m and the issue of 11 mullion new
shares by Wilson Sons Ltd, raising approximately $129 im
for Wilson Sons Ltd The offer price was $11 74 per Wilson
Sons Ltd share, which ymplied a2 Wilson Sons Ltd market
capitalisation including issue procecds to be retained by
Wilson Sons Ltd of approximately $835 2m There was also

an over atlotment optron under which up to a further 3 3
mitlion shares might be sold by Ocean Wilsons Holdings
Ltd as a result of stabiiisation transactions in the 20 days
following the listing On 31 May, Ocean Wilsons Holdings
Ltd received notice of the exercise of the over-allotment
option in respect of 3 3 mitison Wilson Sons shares, which
represented all of the shares onginally designated for the
over-allotment option The over allotment option was
exercised at $11 74 per Wilson Sons share, the same price
as the offer pnce announced on 27 Apnt 2007 Ocean
Wilsons Holdings Ltd received additional proceeds of
approximately $37m from the exerase of the over-
alfolment option Following the exercise of the over-
altotment option the total proceeds (net of expenses)
recerved by Ocean Wilsons Holdings 1id in respect of the
Aotation of Wilson Sons Lid will be approximately $206m
and Ocean Wilsons Holdings Ltd will retain 41,444,000
shares (n Wilson Sons Ltd, representing 58 25% of the
enlarged share capital of Wilson Sons Ltd The IPQ creates
two distinct business arms for Ocean Wilsons Holdings Etd,
namely a majonty shareholding in Wilson Sens Ltd, a newly
listed company owning the Brazilran business, and the
management of a portfolio of international investments
The 1PO will create more visibility for Wilson Sons Ltd, as
well as improving access to capitat to fund the accelerated
growth of the Brazilhan business

SMALLER CAP/AIM
Opening
Value

Portiolio Movements

£46 2m

Portfolio Weighting
Portfolio Performance
Contrnibution to overall total return of 231p
Major Contributors
Ark Therapeutics
Goats Soccer Centres
Hargreaves Services

Looking across the whole portfolio, rather than from a
‘thematic’ point of view, the Small Cap weighting {ASX
minus FTSE 350) was 38 1%, including the 30 6% weighting
in Qcean Wilsons Holdings In addition, we had a year end
weighting of 24 0% 1n AIM stocks, a generally unloved and
undervalued group, making a combined fully isted small

Net New Closing Added
lnvestment Value Value
£0 8m £54 Om £7 Om

21 6%

16 3%
47p
82p
6 3p
62p

cap and AlM guoted weighting of 62 1%, half of which 1s
represented by Ocean Wilsens Holdings
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We sold our holdings 1o Hamworthy (+26 7%), Concateno
(+69 5%) and Raymarnne (+87 %) Peach Holdings
(+19 2%} was taken over for cash by a subsidiary of DL} We
supported Hargreaves Services (+40 9%} acquisstion of
Maltby Colliery for £21m cash, since it is an
underperforming operation, being acquired at net asset
value, with significant potential for improving profitability
and explorting undeveloped opportumties All parts of the
Hargreaves Group will be involved in improving the Maltby
operations We supported Ark Therapeutics Group’s
(+44 6%) placing and open offer at 85p per share to raise
£27 1m on the basis of one new ordinary share for every
four extsting ordinary shares, to progress the development
of the company’s existing climical programmes, accelerate
the development and scaling up of the company's
manufactunng facilittes i Finland and to progress the
development of the company's early pre-chimical pipeline
Ark announced a significant patent win for the intellectual
property concerning the use of agents that affect the
angiotensm-rentn system for the prevention and treatment
of stroke The Eurcpean patent will give protection i the
applicable European countries until 2018, while separate
patent applications are under prasecution i the USA as
well as i other intesnational terntones  The formal grant
of this European patent will trigger a milestong payment
from Boehringer Ingetheim to Ark, whilte Ark will now start
to constder the further commerciat licensing potential of
the patent

We added to our holding in Morson Group (+42 2%), the
UK's leading provider of technical contract staffing,
suppiying over 8,000 hughly skalled white coltar personnet
to the aerospace, defence, nuclear power and rail
ndustries Established in 1969, Morson is the largest and
ane of the longest established technical staffing companies
in the UK We added to our holding i Acertec (+10 3%),
which 1s focused on the provision of processed steel
products that generally require local supply due to therr
fust in-time requirement We averaged down the price of
our hofding in Burst Media Group { 71 6%), an mternational
online advertising services company Recent prelimnary
results provide reassurance that the group 1s now back on
track following last year’'s operational difficulties We also
added to our holding 1n CAP XX (+8 5%), after taking our
original position at the IPQ stage CAP XX 1s a world leader
in the design and manufacture of thin form super capacitors
and energy management sysiems, predominantly for
portable electronic devices like mobele phones, medical
devices and aulomatic meter readers The company
recently announced that 1t 1s well advanced in partnering
and hcensing negobtiations with major international

component manufacturers regarding the scale-up of
production

Camco International (+1 6%) was one of a number of new
holdings taken durning the year, and s a market leader in
the ongmation of carbon credd producing projects n
developing markets Camco works with companies in the
developing world to 1dentify and develop greenhouse gas
emission reduction projects, managing the entire process
from project inttiation to the delivery of carbon credits for
sale n the international market, and s a market leader in
China and Russia, two of the largest potential markets for
carbon credits. Camco is acquinng Energy for Sustamnable
Developments, a world-leading climate change advisor,
which focuses on defiming policies and implementing
projects to help mitigate chmate change Helest {(+10 3%} 1s
a highly profitable manufacturer of plastic products for the
waste management industry with a focus on becoming an
mtegrated wasie management company by expanding into
services IFR Capital { 13 1%) has been established to act
as an acqusstion platform intending to tasget small and
mid-sized businesses in the continentat European food
industry Cape (-0 2%} 1s a leading internationat provider of
essential support services for the energy sector, providing
a broad range of services across the life cycle of major
industrial assets Cape’s foatprint extends fram the UK
through the Gulf and Caspian Sea into the Far East and
Pacific Rim, offering senvices both an and offshore, with
offices in 23 countries

Goals Soccer Centres (+67 1%) 15 the premium operator of
5 and 7-aside football in the UK and the company 1s
achieving good growth through a combination of a wel
planned development programme together with strong
organic growth The strong management team has grown
therr estate from 5 to 22 centres over the last four years and
enjoy a ‘pseudo freehold’ exposure given that the average
term per site ts 0 excess of 60 years NCC's {+14 5%}
Interim resuits highhighted the attractive growth rates of
the core UK Escrow business and the high level of recurning
revenues The company also announced the acquisition of
Site Confidence, aweb site monitonng business, which has
over 400 blue chip customers Leadcom Integrated
Solutions (-35 2%), a leading nternational provider of
mnovative telecommunications solutions, has made a
strong start to the year, margins reman steady and
aperating cash flow 1s improving Orders and frame
agreements for the rest of 2007 amount to $125m, giving
management confidence of achieving its target of at least
$180m revenues for the year
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|_.CLOSED LIFE FUNDS

Opening
Value

Portfolio Movements £133m
Portiolio Wesghting
Portfolio Performance - {tme weighted)
Contribution to overall totat return of 231p
Major Contributor
Resolution

We took up our nghts entitlement in Resolution (+4 0%)
on the basis of 8 for 9 at 480p at a cost of £8 4m, when the
company raised £1 55bn to fund its £3 6bn acquisition of
Abbey’s Life assurance operations, in the biggest nights
issue for four years Clive Cowdery, the chairman of
Resolution, took up his fufl nights at a cost of £46m,
remarking that, ‘exciting though the last three years have
been, it 15 because of the prospects over the next three
yeats that { am personally borrowing £46m to buy more
shares’ The company has said that it actually cught to be
tssuing a Regulatory News Service Statement when it 1s not
talking with other life compames, because the
management's whole strategy 1s to consolidate the
industry On 30 March 2007, Resolution sawd that talks that
might have led to a sale of the company bad ended but the
company continues to access possible acquistiions and

Net New Closing Added
Investment Value Value
£7 7m £23 2m £22m

9 3%
4 0%
Sp
Sp

business combinations On 3 Apnl, Resolution announced
a strong set of final figures, raised the dividend by 15%
and proposed 38% dividend growth to 22 5p per share for
2007, eving a yield of 4 4%, with target increases of at
least 5% per annum thereafter Resolution s ahead of the
competition and 1s well pasitigned to mune large parts of
the industry i run off as well as capture new business in
profitable growth segments Meanwhile there are 10to 12
targets with an aggregate embedded value of £30hn under
review, while any excess capital could be deployed for
share buy backs

| NATURAL RESQURCES
Opening
Value
Portfolio Movements

£47 5m

Portfolio Weighting
Portfolio Performance - (ume weighted)
Coninbuteon to overall total return of 231p
Major Contributor

Hunting Plc

We took profits in Cairn, Dana and Hunting at the end of our
first half to the year and subsequently added to a much
untoved BP {-13 6%) which offers a yield of over 4 0% and
where we believe that much of the bad news s in the price,
and took a new hoiding in BG Group (+4 2%) BG 15
confident of achieving the higher levels of its 6 10% E&P
volume growth target to 2012, and expects average LNG
supply growth of 21-24% p a to 2009, thereby offering

Net New Closing Added

Investment Value Value

(£27 Oom) £22 Om £15m
8 8%

6 2%

6 3p

50p

supenor growth prospect compared with the other targe
mtegrated all companes

We made a swich out of our E&P companies nto the
mtegrated majors, which offer more value and are being
shunned by iveslors We believe that an exposure to this
sector represents an important portfoho insurance play,
should geo-pobltical nskncrease through the year
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No country can easily ramp up production, so ifoutput in a
producing country were to fall significantly it would cause
a shock to world supply Second, these mega cap oil
companies are probfic cash producers, so 2007 could
witness an oil sector shift in cash distnbutions te favour
dividends in 2006 BP's share buyback programme
amounted to US515 5bn, and in the first quarter of this
year BP has re-purchased S$2 4bn of stock Any change to
BP's dividend 1s a matter of consequence for the entire UK
market given that BP pays approximately 7p of every £1 of
dwidends paid by the entire FTSE 100 Index In what
remains a low yield environment, but yield hungry market,
higher devidends from the natural resources sector could
help to soften perceptions of ¢ycheat nsk Morgan Stanley
and jP Morgan research concludes that the market
currently values the upsiream businesses of BP and Shell
at about $10-$11 per barrei of ail equivalent of reserves,
about haif the multiple paid in recent asset deals or the
average finding and development unit costs

Royal Dutch Shell {-6 1%) has resolved the uncertainty
hanging over Sakhalin 2 which is based in the far east of
Russia Gazprom is paying $%7 45bn for a 50% stake in
Sakhalin Energy investment company, thereby reducing
Shell’'s 55% stake to 27 5% and removing many of the
operating uncertainties involved in dealing with the
Russian Goveinment as well as opening up more
opportunities for future developments A good outcome

gwven the arcumstances Royal Dutch Shell ceased 1o buy
back shares after the publication of results in February
Instead, it has ramped up its capital expenditure plans to
$24bn for this year compared to $20bn in 2006 and 1s also
spending $7bn on purchasing the Shell Canada minonty In
short, the sl mdustry values itself higher than the market
does, which s being reflected in large-scale buybacks and
M&A, while investors are dismissing 17% of the UK
stockmarket’s earmngs as cyclically dangerous and
therefore to be avoided

Finally, we added to our holding in Melrose Resources
(+13 0%) by supporting a ptacing to raise £26 5m to fund
ongoing exploration and development in Egypt, provide
flexibthity for the forthcoming dniling programme in
Bulgana and enable the medium term exploration of the
recently acquired East Texas assets to maximise vatue |t
was encouraging to note that chairman Robert Adair
(51 8% posil placng) and second largest shareholder
Caledomia (8 9%) have taken up their pro rata share of the
placing We soid our holdings in BHP and Xstrata at the end
of the first half of our financial year Mining has since fared
better than the oils because of a strong belief in the
Chinese and Emerging markets demand story So, although
supply nsks and US economic stowdown still exst, the
structurai story and belref 1n a super-cycle outweigh the
cychical threats

| PROPERTY

Cpening Net New Closing Added
Value Investment Value Value
Portfolio Movements £9 3m £32m £15 8m £33m

Portfolio Weighting 6 3%
Portfolio Performance {time weighted) 25 1%
Contrnibution to overail total return of 231p 13 8p

Major Contributors

DV3 81p
Haitadale Group 60p

We gave an mrevocable acceptance for a recommended
225p per share offer for the enttre issued share capual of
Halladale {(+42 6%) valuing the company at £171m,
compared with the IPQ price of 50p 10 2001 when the Trust
made its mvestment We have ‘replaced’ this holding by
taking a new posttion in Hansteen (+3 9%), which, under a
proven management team has selectively acquired £150m
of properties in Continental Europe at an average yield of

over 8% on cost, with a pipeline of properties in legal
negohiation We supported a placing to raise a {further £70m
te take advantage of increasing stitutional interest in
Continental European property, in the belief that there
remarmns considerable scope for yield compression i that
geographic market
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Engel East Europe's (-4 8%) ulumate controllng
shareholder's share base has changed Lagna was 61 8%
owned by Jacob Engel mierests Jacobh Engel has entered
nto an agreement to dispose of his entire holding in Lagna
to a quoted developer, Azorim, operating in the USA and
israell residential development markets Azonm stated,
‘Azonm s excited by the presence Engel East Europe has
established in the region and wishes to participate and
accelerate this potential, sharing benefits with all existing
shareholders in Engel East Europe’. Jacob Engel will still
have a continumg shareholding interest sn the Engel Group
and remams a part of the management team

DV3 {unquoted} began Ufe in March 2004 with a
commutment perod of four years, a seven year term plus
three, one year extensions, and si1ze of £330 8m As at 31
March 2007, total funds of £237 5m (72%) out of the total
commitment of £330 8m had been drawndown from
shareholders At ttis date, a total of £150 6m had been
returned to shareholders by way of wwo capual

redemptions  Subsequent 10 31 March 2007, the
Hammersmith Business Park disposal completed on 4 Apnil
2007 This resulted n funds of £64 Om being made
avatlable which were returmed to shareholders on 13 Apnil
2007, at which date a total of £214 6m had been returned
to shareholders by way of capstal redemptions of
preference shares, representing 90% of drawdown funds A
total of £22 9m 15 now invested in DV3 and undrawn but
predominantly commutted subscriptions stand at £93 3m
These are good results The management of DV3 expect
there to be far less performance from yield compression
going forwards and it will be much more about adding
value, which they feel will suit their more cautious,
conservative and diligent approach to projects Hansa Trust
will be very interested in conlinuing to co-invest with this
property team and may well wish o take an investment in
DV3's successor, DV4

LARGE CAP
Opening
Value
Port{oho Movements

£41m

Portfolio Weighting
Portfolio Performance - (ime weighted)
Contribution to averall 1otal return of 231p
Majar Contnbutor

Home Retall Group

GlaxoSmithKline Plc

HSBC Plc

Once agam, looking across the whole portfoho rather than
from a ‘thematic’ point of view, the ‘mega-cap” weighting
(FTSE 10) atyear-end was 9 3%, with a further werghting of
18 8% n large cap (FTSE 11-100), making a combined total
weighting of 28 1%

We have increased our weighting 1 large and much
unloved ‘mega-cap’ companies and this is after adding to
our holding 1n the demerged Home Retall Group (+6 8%)
and subsequently selling the position Five of the ten
largest companies in the UK were in the bottom decile
performance of FISE 100 i calendar 2006, continuing a
trend of mega-cap underperformance from the last few
years that we believe could reverse

Net New Closing Added
Investment Value Value
£12 5m £16 5m £01m
6 6%
-5 5%
-01p
Otp
01p
-Gip

Wolseley's (+5 7%, share price has been weak because of
the dechning US new residential housing market and the
fear that US residential sales and earnings amount 1o some
40% of group totals This provided us with an entry pomt
Wolseley 1s the world's largest specialist trade distnbutor
of plumbing and heating products to professional
contraciors and 1s also a teading supplier of building
maternials and services Wolseley has been investing i its
business both in terms of geography and adjacent products
markets, spending on distnibution centres, regional supply
centres and some new formats Acquisitions have also been
a significant avenue of growth Prior to the £1 4bn
acquisition of DT Group in Scandinavia, Wolseley spent
£914m 1n the year reported on 53 bolt on deals at an
average cost of £17m Going forwards increasing benefis
are expected from cost reduction inttiatives, an tncreased
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focus on trading margins, workung capual efficiency and
focus on cash flow to finance future growth We took up
the offer of new shares i Expenan Group (+2 1%), which s
a unique collection of credit bureau, scoring, sottware,
marketing and internet services It has a scaleable busimess
mode! with high returns, good growth potential, strong
cash flow and imrted competition in ifs cere business just
after our year end Experian announced the acguisition of
Hitwise, an mternet marketing intelligence company, for
US$240m, which will be funded from the Group’s existing
cash resource

HSBC Holdings { 6.2%) used to enjoy a premium rating
compared with other UK banking stocks, because of s
exposure o fast growing emerging markets in Asia and
Latin Amenca This prermium has steaddy eroded,
parbicularly in the past year after things started to go wrong

In its sub prime mortgage operations, following the poor
integration of Household, the US consumer business that
HSBC acquired 1n 2002 for US$14 7bn The shares now
offer a yteid of over 4 5% and 1t 15 interesting {o note that
Maan Abdulwahed al-Sanea, regarded as one of the most
aggressive busmessmen in the Gulf, has just declared a
3 1% stake GlaxoSmithKline (5.5%) has 31 major
products in phase 3 development providing greater
earnings visibility, and a strong halance sheet coupled with
robust free cash generation The group completed a £4bn
share buy back programme last September and in October
commenced a £6bn buy-back programme over three years
Politics, pipelines and pricing risks appear 10 be already
discounted in the share price, while the company remams
a pradigious cash generator

UTILITIES
Opening
Value
Portfolio Movements

£16 6m

Portfolio Weighting
Portfolio Performance - (time weighted)
Contribution to overall total return of 231p
Major Contnbutors

Scottish & Southern

Centnca Ple

National Gnd Plc

Utiditees have traditionally been seen as low nsk high yield
defensive stocks in which to invest during penods of
market weakness or faling interest rates, as a result of
being perceved as bond proxies Over time this view has
changed following a peniod of market kberalisation, an
exposure to commodity prices, a focus on core business
activities and a greater emphasis on shareholder returns
and balance sheet management Not surprisingly, these
‘forever industries’ with long duration assets, stable and
predictable cash flows have become highly attractive to
infrastructure investors The stable, retiable quatities that
formerly led to them being considered dull, now make them
attractive They make up a diverse group with cifferent
charactenstics For infrastructure assets bke grids and
water, the regulated return and how this compares to
market irteresl rates are the most significant determinants
of valuation For generalors the main share price dnvers
are commodity prices, since the inputs of gas and coal and

Net New Closing Added
Investment Value Value
(£6 Om) £16 Om £5 4m
& 4%
34 6%
22 6p
6 3p
6 Op
4 6p

the output of CO2 determine power prices Pure marketing
and supply companigs have t¢ operate in the power/gas
price cycle and make decaisions about margin versus market
share, so, all in all it 15 not a very homogeneous sector

We seld our holdings i United Utihities (+17 4%) and
Severn Trent (+19 4%), following the fatter's completion of
Its focus on water, demerging Biffa, selling property and
agreeing the sale of its US laboratones busimess Severn
Trent also increased rts gearnng 0 60% of regulated capital
value wvia the payment of a £577m special dvidend We
added to our holding i Nattonal Gnd (+44 8%), which
recently announced the sale of its UK wireless network umt
to Macquarie Bank Ltd's Arguiva for £2 5bn, of which it wall
use £1 8bn to buy back shares and focus its attention on
the UK and US electrioity and gas markets
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We also added to our holding n Scottish and Southern
Energy (+40 9%), which has commitied itself 1o a more
aggressive dividend policy, whereby the dividend will be
mcreased by 18% to 55p in 06/07, followed hy real
dividend growth of 4% to 2009/10 Centrica’s (+42 5%) full
year profits beat analysts forecasts as the company paid
less for gas to supply homes, and it announced £200m of
cost savings from the British Gas Residential umit thus year

by tnmmmg costs Centrica has lowered household charges
for the first time since 2001 after 103m customers
defected last year and it helieves that lower wholesale gas
prices will give it an edge over its rivals who may use coal-
fired plants New gas import pipelines from Norway and
The Netherlands have provided more fuel to the UK, cutting
€osts for ubibities to supply homes and businesses

INSURANCE
Openmg
Value
Portfolio Movements

£15 6m

Portfolig Weighting

Partfolio Performance

Contribution to overall total return of 231p
Major Contributors
Cathedral Capital
Brit Insurance

Disciple Holdco, a newly incorporated company funded by
the Alchemy Investment Plan made a recommended cash
offer of 140p for each unquoted Cathedral Capital ‘A’ share
(+57 3%) We were sorry not to have the chance to roll
some of all of our mvestment into the new vehicle Brit
Insurance’'s (+13 2%} final results were marginally
disappointing at the underwritmg level, although higher
investment income hetped to make up the shortfall More
pleasingly, the expected total dividend of 15p was
augmented by a 2p special dividend, and the company
announced a share buyback of up to £50m or 15p per
share, taking the total return eguivalent to over 10%, which
represents a powerful capital management message Kiln's
(+30 0%) final results were ahead of expectations and the
company 15 to establish a new Bermudian holding
company, Kitn Ltd and a new remsurance company, Kin
Re Kiln Re 15 to be capitahised at £160m, through a transfer
of existing group funds and the plans therefore do not
require new capital Kitn has raised its mimmum through-
cycle dividend commtment from 3p to 4p, a lower pay-out
relative 1o s peers, reflecting Kiln's need to retain capital
for growth

Net New Closing Added
Investment Value Value
(£8 9m) £114m £47m
4 6%
33 8%
19 6p
13 1p
47p

The tatest market data suggest that the underwnting
climate for 2007 remains attractive, but the rating trend s
downward and as such, 2008 s getting more challenging
In summary, rates are softening although 1t 15 not a *soft
market’” Not surprisingly, some commentators are
forecasting a more active hurricane season tn companson
to last year's benign outcome
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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (contnveq)

| MiD CAP
Opening
Value
Portfolio Movements

£6 1m

Portfoho Weighting
Portfolio Performance
Contribufion to overall total return of 231p
Major Contributors
Premter Foods
Biffa
SSL International

Looking across the whole portfolio rather than from a
‘thematac’ pomt of view, the Mid Cap (FTSE 250) weighting
was 8 3% at year end Premrer Foods bid a 30% premium
for our RHM {+14 1%}, which will create the largest food
producer n the UK, umting Hovis and Mr Kipling with
Branston Pickle and Angel Delight, and will enable the
enlarged group to develop strateg:c partnerships with the
major food retailers, as well as creating £85m of annual
synergies Biffa (+147 3%) was demerged from Severn
Trent and 1t has been the subject of persistent bid rumours
Goldman Sachs says the UK waste ndusiry needs to
consolidate because of structural challenges To meet
Eurppean Union waste dispasal targets, the broker

Net New Closing Added
Investment Value Value
£27m £10 6m £1 8m
4 2%
281%
7 6p
26p
19
17p

suggests that the UK waste industry would need to invest
£15 8bn over the next 13 years, which)s almost lour imes
the size of the current UK waste seclor's market
capitakisation We backed Galliford Try’s (14 2%) placing
and open offer 1o raise £150m to acquive Linden Holdings
by taking stock in the firm placing and underwriting £4 8m
of the open offer Linden’s focus on urban regeneration and
the south east fits in well with the rest of the group, 1s
significantly earmings enhancing and propels the greup into
the Mid Cap index Galliford represents an excellent way to
ptay infrastructure services foliowing its earlier acquisition
of Mornisan SSL International (+27 0%) has performed
strongly on persistent rumours of a vd
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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S

REPORT (continued)

| OUTLOOK

Share prices are dnven by earmings, which rose
impressively last year and by the perceved nsks to those
earmings in the future, and interest rates Share prices are
also dniven by valuations, which in turn can be affected by
the avatability of cheap debt The Bears do not believe that
corporate profits will hold up given that corporate earnings
as a percentage of national income are currently at a forty-
year high, and predict that the combination of slowing
growth and declining pricing power will dampen corporate
profits growth and earnings gong forwards, which could
m turn slow the pace of corporate share buy-backs and
M&A However, slowing earnings growth itsell 1s nol a
precursor of a correction, since there have heen many bull
markets against a backdroep of siowing earnings growth

Secondly, the Bears believe that central banks around the
woild seem intent on withdrawing biquidity from the global
financial markets The combmation of slowing earmings
growth and draining hquidity has hustoncally not been a
particularly good one for equities |f the credit cycle has
peaked, there witl be less liquidsty washing around the
financial system, less money chasing potentially more
assets, and hence lower prices Thurdty, while UK Equities
look 1nexpensive, trading on 12 13 times prospective
earnmgs, they are about 10% more expensive if the top 10
‘mega cap’ stocks are excluded These ‘mega-cap’ stocks
account lor a comparatively high 40% plus of the FTSE 100
capitalisation and the top 10 shares have a median
unwesghted PE of 11 8x, while the median unweighted PE
of the next 90 15 19 1x A backdrop of nsing o prices,
escalating woes in the US sub prime mortgage market and
weak LS sales data all create fresh uncertainty about the
outlook for US growth, inflation and interest rates
However, ane could argue that a lot of the bad news is
already behind us and priced 1n to the market The big rise
In Amencan nterest rates has happened, although there
may be further upward movements in Europe and fapan
The perod of deceteration of the US and Japanese
economies has grobably passed and the largest part of the
correction in the US housing market has probably now
happened It could be a case of “1f1t’s in the news it’s in the
price’ indeed, the iatest US figures show that employment
15 growing faster thann the last mid-cycle slowdown, while
US exports are bkely to prosper against the background of
a weak dollar Finally, equity market valuations are stil}
below long-term averages in most major world markets and
hquidity considerations continue o seem supportive for
equity markets generally In fact looking at the world as a
whole, consensus growth expectations could turn out to
be too modest, rather than too ambstious, and whatever
the problems facing Europe, they could be offset by
stronger growth i the UK, China, India and Asia, excluding
Japan It I1s quite possible that the US economy will
accelerate from its short peniod of adjustment, as the
housing market slowdown 1s absorbed and the corporate
sector remains strong After all, thes 1s what happened here
with the UK housing market in 2005-2006

This could imply that structurat inflationary pressures
remain aganst & robust demand background, suggesting
that mterest rates in the US, UK and Asta may need to rise
duning the course of this year

It may be ‘steady as she goes’ on economic grounds, but
the biggest risks could be geo-pohiical and political Israel
forces remamn focused on developments within Lebanon
US armed forces are involved in managing securty across
Irag and Afghamistan, while Iran presents an icreasing
Issue over the development of its nuclear ambitions,
thereby becoming a rnising threat 1o global security On the
political front we are seeing a resurgence of national
interest and an erosion of the rule of law, with Russia
holding Belarus to ransom over gas supphes, laly's
Autostrade buckling under government pressure to call off
a merger with Spain’s Albertis, all actions of protectionist
governments It 1s hard for stockmarkets to value these
mounting gec-political and political nsks, and hence they
are probably not reflected in today's stockmarket
valuations At the end of the day, a small nse n
protectiomsm will only have a small effect at the margin,
while the probability of a much bigger geo political
disruption appears low Stll, it1s worth bearing in mind

One thing s certam, namely the aversion of UK institutional
investors to domestic equities continues unabated A
Cttrgroup report shows that WK institutions sold UK equities
at a record level of nearly £30bn in 2006, makng 1t the third
consecutive year that selling by them exceeded £156n
Meanwhile inftows totalled £90bn in 2006, surpassing the
previcus peak 1n 2000 and some 50% more than 2005
levels The institutions are sitting on huge levels of cash,
which now represents 8 7% of institutional assets, which
seems very high compared with the level of interest rates
The general public also under-own equities, having
preferred property, where yields have now fallen sharply,
which 15 causing some private investors to become
distrustful of the property market Thes fack of interest 15
ikely to have kept share prices fow, particuiarly amongst
the liquid ‘mega-caps’ which have taken the brunt of the
selling 1t's not surprising that these corporate gants are
attracting the attention of foreign buyers Although the
growth in the earnings of FTSE AH-Share companies 1s
expected to slow to 7 1% this year and to 4 7% in 2008, a
prospective PE of 11 5x for the All-Share Index stdl appears
attractive in relation to other asset classes Private eguity
certamly thinks so and so do foreign buyers Laooking
ahead, PEs could be driven higher as mstitutional and
private investors return to the stockmarket to get more up
to wetght in equities and put thetr sizeable cash balances
to work

Hansa Capital Partners LLP
29 June 2007




PORTFOLIO INFORMATION

Investment

Ocean Wilsons Holdings Limited
Resojuson Plc

Brit Insurance Holdings Plc

Ark Therapeutics Group Pl
Scotlish and Soulhern Energy Plc
Hargreaves Services Plc

BP Pic

8G Group Plc

National Gnid Transco Pic
EmSpa

Top 10 Investments

HSBC Holdings Pl
GlaxoSmuthKline Pl
Centrica Pic

Halladale Group Plc
Morson Graup Plc
Wolseley Plc

Engel East Europe NV
NCC Group Pl

Goals Soccer Centres Plc
Melrose Resources Plc

Top 20 Investments

Galliford Try Ple
Hansteen Holdings Plc
bV3ltd#

Expenan Group Pic
Acertec Pl

Royal Dutch Shell Plc
FKi Plc

Premier Foods Pl¢
Cap-XX Ple

Straight Pl

Top 30 Investments

Other investments (31}

Total investments

Listed
AlM and GFEX
Unguoted

# Unquoted

As at 31 March 2067

Market value  Percentage of
£000 investmenis
74,822 3071
23,187 .52
9,561 392
6,509 267
6,164 253
5,650 2 32
5,520 2727
5,131 211
4,984 204
4,872 204
146,500 60 13
4,892 201
4,890 20
£,831 198
4,760 195
4,253 175
4,169 171
3,546 162
3512 161
3,745 154
3,744 153
189,642 77 B4
3,420 1 40
3,375 139
3,006 123
2,545 104
2,445 101
2,429 100
2,325 095
2,i95 {90
2,142 Q88
2,100 0 86
215,624 88 50
78,017 1150
243,641 100.00
189,623 77 83
51,011 2094
3,007 123
243,641 100.00
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DIRECTORS® REMUNERATION REPORT

The Board has prepared this report, in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 7A to the Compamies Act 1985 An
ordinary resolution for the approval of this report will be put to the members at the forthcoming Annuat General Meeting

The law requires your Company's Auditors to audit certaim of the disclosures provided The disclosures an the Directors’
emoluments for the year have been audited, and the Auditors’ opimon 1s included in their report on page 34

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

| DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has four non executive Directors The Board
as a whole fulfills the function of the Remuneration
Committee The Board has appoinied the Company
Secretary to provide relevant information when the
birectors constder the level of Directors’ fees

The Board cained out a review of the level of Direciors’
fees during the year and concluded that the amounts
should remain unchanged for the financial year

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ FEES

The Board's policy 1s that the remuneration of non-
execubive Directors shouid reflect the expenence of the
Board as a whole, be appropniate for the work carried out
and the responsibilities undertaken 1tis intended that this
policy wili continue

The fees for the non executive Directors are within the
limits set out in the Company’s Artictes of Association
which are £150,000 n total, and they are not eligible for
honuses, pension benefits, share opfions, long term
mcentive schemes or other benefits

DIRECTORS' ATTENDANCE

It 1s the Board's policy that all the Directors have a service
contract None of the service contracts 1s for a fixed term
The terms of their appointment provide that a Director shall
retire and be subject 1o re-election at the first Annual
General Meeling after thewr appomtment and at least every
three years by rotation after that The Board has decided
that each Director will retire annually at the AGM and seek
re-election as appropnate The terms also provide that
either party may give three months’ notice and m certam
circumstances a Director may be removed without notice
and that compensation will not be due on leaving office

The Directors meet as a Board on a guarterly basis and at ofher fimes as necessary and the table below sets out the
number of meetings and the attendance of them by each Director

Number of meetings held
Number of meetings attended
Mr Hammond Chambers

Lord Barwick

Mr Salomon

Professor Wood

Audit
Siratesic Board Commiiiee
1 5 2

o e
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT ontnued

| YOUR COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

in accordance with the Compames Act requirements and specification, the graph below shows the fotal return to

Shareholders to the total return of the Company's Performance Benchmark

| BENCHMARK COMPARISON
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| DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS FOR THE YEAR (AUDITED)
The Directors who served in the year received the foliowing emoluments in the form of fees
2007 2006
£000 £000
Mr Hammeond Chambers (Charrman of the Board) 20 20
Lord Borwick 15 15
Mr Salomon* 13 13
Professor Wood 14 14
62 62

Following a review after the year end, the emoluments paid to the Directors have been changed as follows Mr Hammond
Chambers £30,000, Lord Borwick £20,000, Mr Salomon £18,000 and Professor Wood £20,000 with effect from 1 Apnit

2007

*In addition Mr Salomon received fees dunng the year from three comparies in which the Company had an investment

These were Ocean Witsons Holdings Limited, Cathedral Capital PLC and DV3 Lirnted
| APPROVAL

The Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 32 to 33 was approved by the Board of Directors on 13 june 2007 and signed

an is ;half by Mr Hammond-Chambjrs




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF HANSA TRrRusT PLC

We have audited the group and parent company financial
statements (*the financial statements”) on pages 35 to 52
These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein  We have also audited
the information in the Directors’ Rernuneration Report that
15 described as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company's shareholders, as
a body, 1n accordance with Section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Our audit wark has been undertaken so that we
might state 10 the company's sharehotders those matters
we are required {o state to them in an audrtors' report and
for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company’s shareholders as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Respective responsibitities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibikities for preparing the Annual
Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
financial statemenis in accordance with apphcable law and
International Fmanaal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Unton are set out in the Statement
of Directors' Responsibilities

Our responsibility 15 to audit the financial statements and
the pan of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
i accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and far view and whether the
financial statements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration Report to be acdited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and as
regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation We also report to you whether in our opimion
the imformation given in the Report of the Directors 1s
consistent with the financeal statements The imformation
given in the Report of the Directors includes that speaific
information presented in the Chairman’s Statement that is
cross-referred from the Business Review section of the
Report of the Directors

tn addition we report to you If 1n our opinion, the company
has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received afl the information and explanations we reguire for
our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 15 not
disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement
reflects the company's compliance with the nine provisions
of the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by
the Listing Rules of the Financiat Services Authority, and we
report f it does not We are not required to consider
whether the board's statements on internal control cover
all nsks and controls, or form an opmion on the
effectivencss of the group's corporate governance
procedures or its nsk and control procedures

We read other wmformation contained in the Annual Report,
and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited
financial statements The other information compnises only
the Report of the Directors, the unaudited part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, the Chairman's Statement,
and the Investment Manager’s Report We consider the
implications for our report iIf we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with
the financial statements  Our responsibilities do not extend
to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audst in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board  An auditincludes examination, on
a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the finanoiat statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Reporst to be audited |t also
inclugdes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financeal statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the group's and company’s
circumstances, consistently apphed and adeguately
disclosed

We planned and perlormed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to
gwe reasonable assurance that the financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other megulanity orerror 1n forrng our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financral statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion
In our opinion

= the group financial stalements give a true and fair view,
tn accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Umon, of the state of affairs of the group as at 31 March
2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

»  the parent company financial statements give a true
and fair view, in accordance wrth IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the stale of
affairs of the parent company as at 31 March 2007,

» the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companmies Act 1985
and, as regards the group financial statements, Article
4 of the 1AS Regulation, and

* the information given m the Report of the Directors 1s

E consuslgt qul tatements
RSM Robson Rhodes LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, England
29 June 2007
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

Gains on investments
Loss on denwvative
Exchange losses on
currency balances
Investment incomse

fnvestment management fee
Other expenses

Profit before finance costs and
taxation
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit for the year

Return per Ordinary and
‘A’ non votirg Ordinary share

Notes

11

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capial lotal
2007 2007 2007 o6 2006 2006
£000 £000 £600 £000 £0:00 £000

- 52,403 52,403 - 55,973 55,973

- (20} (20) - - -
- (10} (10) - (12 {12)
5,215 - 5,215 4,261 - 4,261
5,215 52,373 57,588 4,261 55,961 60,222
(1,312) - (1,312) {1,034) - (1,034
(581) - (561) £539) - (539)
{1,873) - (1,873) (1,573) - (1.573)
3,342 52,373 55,715 2,688 55,961 58,649
(226) - (226) (70 - (70)
3,116 52,373 55,489 2,618 55,961 58,579
(58) = (58) (31) - (31)
3,058 52,373 55,431 2,587 55,961 58,548
12.8p 218.2p 2310p 16 8p 233 2p 244 0p

The total column of this statement represents the Group's Incame Statement, prepared in accordance with IFRS The
supplementary revenue and capital return ¢olumns are both prepared under guidance published by the Association of

Investment Companies

All revenue and capital items in the above statement derive from conlinuing operations

The accompanying notes are anntegral part of this statement




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuITY - GROUP

For the year ended 31 March 2007

Capitat Capital

Share redemption Retained Share redemptuion Retained
Capitat reserve earnings Total Capital resenve  earnings Totat
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £600
Net assets at 1 Apnl 1,200 300 194,875 196,375 1,200 300 138,547 140,047
Prolit for the year - - 55,431 55,431 - - 58,548 58,548
Dwvidends paid 7 - - (2,340) (2,340) - - (2,220) (2,220}
Net assets at 31 March 1,200 300 247,966 249,466 1,200 300 194,875 196,375

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - COMPANY

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Capital Capital

Share redemption Retaimed Share redemption  Retaimed
Capital reserve earnings Total Capntal reserve  earnings Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £600 £060 £000 £000
Net assets at 1 April 1,200 300 194,875 196,375 1,200 300 138,547 140,047
Profit for the year - - 55,431 55431 - - 58,548 58,548
Bvidends paid 7 - - (2,350) (2,350 - - {2,2200 (2,220)
Net assets at 31 March 1,200 300 247,966 249,466 1,200 300 194,875 196,375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE GROUP AND COMPANY

as at 31 March 2007

Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Non—current investments
Shares in Group undertaking 10 - - 638 643
Investments held at fair value through
profit and loss 11 243,641 202,099 243,641 202,099
243,641 202,099 244,279 202,742
Current assets
Other recewvables i3 737 830 737 930
Investments 14 4,667 - 4,667 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,424 241 1,424 212
6,828 1,171 6,828 1,142
Current babilities
Other pavables falling due
within one year 15 (1,003) (6,895) (1,641) 7,509
Net current assets/(liabilities) 5,825 (5,724) 5,187 6,367)
Net assets 249,466 196,375 249,466 196,375
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 16 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200
Capital redemption reserve 17 300 300 300 300
Retained earnings 18 247,966 194,875 247,966 194,875
Total equity shareholders’ funds 249,466 196,375 249,466 196,375
Net asset vatue per Ordinary and
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary share 18 1,039.4p 818 2p 1,039 4p 818 2p

The Financial Statements on pages 35 to 52 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 Juna 2007 and were
signed on its behalf by

VT2 e

Alex Hammond-Chambers
Chairmaon

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes £000 E000 £000 £000
Cash fiows from operating activities
Profit before finance costs & taxation 55,715 58,649 55,715 58,649
Adpustments for
Realised gains on investments 11 {32,063) (13,70%) (32,063) (13,705}
Unrealised gains on investments i1 {20,340) (42,268) (20,335) (42,481)
Effect of forergn exchange rate changes 10 12 10 12
Interest paid - 1) - (1)
Decrease in current asset investments - (255) - -
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
ang accrued income 13 (391) 146 (391) 146
Increase in other creditors and accruals 15 - 110 24 507
Taxes pad (58) (31) (58) 31
Purchase of non-current investments (65,752) (53,066} (65,752) (53,066)
Sale of non-current investments 77,905 49,302 77,905 48,839
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
operating activities 15,026 (1,107) 15,055 {1,131
Cash Aows from financng actevities
Interest pard on bank loans (226) 69 (226} 69
Dividends paid (2,340) {2,220) (2,340) 2,220
(Repayment)/ drawdown of loans (6,600} 3,565 (6,600} 3,565
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from
financing activities {9,166} 1,276 (9,166) 1,276
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,860 169 5,889 145
Cash and cash equivalent at 1 Aprdl 241 84 212 79
Effect of foretgn exchange rate changes 10 (12 10) (12)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 6,091 241 6,091 212

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The imanoial statements of the Group and Company have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS") These comprise standards
and nterpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB"), together with
interpretations of the Internationat Accounting Standards
and Standsng Interpretations Committee approved by the
International Accounting Standards Commuttee {|ASC’) that
remam in effect, to the extent that IFRS have been adopted
by the European Union

These financial statements are presented o pounds
sterling because that s the currency of the primary
economic enviranment in which the Group operates As
permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, an
mcome statement for the Company has not been presented
tn the financial statements

{a) Basis of preparation

The finanaal statements have been prepared on an
histonical cost basts, except for the revaluation of certam
financial assets The principal accounting policies adopted
are set out below Where presentational gurdance set out
In the Statement of Recommended Practice ('SORP’) for
investment trusts 1ssucd by the Association of Investment
Companies (AIC) i January 2003 (and revised in December
2005) s consistent with the requirements of IFRS, the
Diurectors have sought to prepare the financial statements
on a basis comphant with the recommendations ol the
SORP

(b} Basis of Consolidation

The Financial Statements comprise the accounts of the
Caompany and its subsidiary undertaking made up to 31
March 2007  In the Company’s Financial Statements the
investment i its substdiary undertaking is stated at farr
value Al accounting polictes are apphied consisiently
throughout the Group

(¢} Presentation of income statement

in order to reflect better the actities of an investment trust
company and in accordance with gsdance 1ssued by the
AIC, supplementary information which analyses the income
statement between items of a revenue and capital nature
has been presented alongside the income statement [n
accordance with the Company's status as a UK investment
company under section 266 of the Companies Act 1985,
net capital returns may not be distributed by way of
dividend Additionatly the net

revenue 1s the measure that the Directors bebeve to be
appropriate 1n assessing the Campany's compliance with
certain requirements set out 1n section 842 of the Income
and Corporalion Taxes Act 1988

(d} Non- current investments

As the Company's business ts investing in financial assets
with a view to profiting from their total return in the form of
increases (n fair value, finanaial assets are designated as
fair value through profit and loss on imtial recogmition 1n
accordance with 1AS 39 The Company manages and
evaluates the performance of these investments on a fair
value basis in accordance with sts investment strategy and
informatron about the mvestments s provided on this basis
to the Board of Directors

Investments are recognised and de-recognised on the trade
date where a purchase or sale 15 under a contract whose
terms require delivery wihin the timeframe established by
the market concerned For listed 1nvestments, this 1s
deemed to be tvd market prices or closing prices for SETS
stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange SETS 1s
the London Stock Exchange electronic trading service
covering most of the market including all FISE 100
constituents and most hiquid FTSE 250 constituents atong
with some other securities

Unguoted investments are stated at fair value through
profit and loss as determined by using vanous valuation
techniques, w1 accordance with the International Private
Equity and Venture Capstal (IPEVTY) Valuation Guidelines
These include using recent arms length market transactions
between knowledgeable and willing parties where
available Over the counter options are valued daily by the
issuimg broker

Gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value are
included in net profit or loss for the per:od as a capital item
i the income statement and are ultimately recognised in
the Capital Reserves

(e) Current gsset investments

Current asset investments are classified as held for trading
and are measured at fair value with gains and losses ansing
fram their changes i far value bemng included in the
Income Statement as a revenue item Transaction ¢osts
incurred on the acquisition or disposal of current asset
investments are expensed and mcluded in the revenue
column of the Income Statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS wontnued

ErarE

aar iy

{f} Coshand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprnise cash at bank and
short-term deposits wilth an onginal maturity of three
months or less

(g} Investment Income

Dividends recewable on equity shares are recogmised on
the ex-dividend date Where no ex-dividend date 1s quoted,
dividends are recognised when the Company’s nght to
recewve payment 1s established Dividends and interest on
mvestments 0 unbisted shares and securitigs are
recognised when they hecome recesvable Dividends are
stated net of related tax credits

Underwnting commession (s recognised m the revenue
column of the Income Statement msofar as it relates to
shares not requited to be taken up Where a proportion of
the shares underwrtten 1s reguied to be taken up the
same proportion of the commission recerved is recogmsed
in the cap:tal column of the Income Statement, with the
balance taken to the revenue column

(h) Expenses

Al expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis
Expenses are charged through the revenue column of the
Income Statement except as follows

() Material expenses which are incidental to the
acguisition of an mvestment are taken to the Realised
Capital Reserves via the capital column of the Income
Statement,

{n) Expenses which are inadentat to the disposal of
investments are deducted from the sale procceds via
the capital column of the Income Statement,

(i} Expenses are charged to the realised capital reserve,
via the capital column of the Income Statement, where
a connection with the mamtenance or enhancement of

the value of the investments can be demaonstrated
(i} Taxgtion

The lax expenses represent the sum of the tax curently
payable and deferred tax

The tax cunently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as
reporied in the income statement because «f exciudes dems
of income or expenses that are taxable or deductibie in
other years and o further excludes items thatl are never
taxable or deductible The Group's hability for cunent taxais
catcutated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred

laxation is recognised n respect of all temporary
differences that have onginated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result
im an obligation 1o pay more or a nnght to pay less 1ax in
future have occurred at the balance sheet date measured
on an undiscounted basis and based on enacted tax rates
This 1s subject to deferred tax assets only being recognised
if it 15 considered probable that there will be sutable profits
from which the future reversai of the underlying temporary
differences can be deducted Temporary differences are
differences arsing between the Company’s taxable profits
and its resudts as stated in the accounts, which are capable
of reversal i one or more subsequent penods

Due to the Company's siatus as an investment trust
company, and the intention to cantinue meeting the
conditions 1eguered to obtam approval i the foresecable
future, the Company has not provided for deferred tax on
any capital gains and losses ansing on the revaluation or
disposal of investments

(i} Foreign Currencies

Transachons denomsnated 1n foreign currencies are
recorded in the tocal currency at the actual exchange rates
as at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
habsities denomunated in foreign currencies at the yearend
are reported at the rate of exchange prevaiing at the year
end Any gam or {oss ansing fiom a change in exchange
rates, subrsequent to the date of the transaction, 1s included
as an exchange gamn or {055 0 the capital or revenue
column of the Income Stalement, depending on whether
the gain or loss 15 of a capetal or revesue nature
respectively

{k} Reserves

Capital reserves — Realised

The following are credited or charged to this reserve via

the capital column of the income Statement

-~ gamns and losses on the realisation of nvestments,

— realised exchange differences of a capital nature,

- expenses charged to the capital column of the Income
Statement in accordance with the above accounung
policies

Capital reserves - Unrealised

The follawing are credited ar charged Lo this reserve via

the capstal colizmn of the Intome Statement

- increases and decreases in the valuation of
imvestments held at the year end,

— unrealised exchange differences of a capital natute
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS tontinued)

2. INCOME
Revenue Revenue
2007 2006
£000 {600
Income from listed Investments
Dividends 3,562 1673
Overseas dividends 1,39 1,232
4,953 3,905
Other operating income
Net dealing profit of the subsidiary - 255
Placement and underwriting income 4 28
Interast recevable AAA rated money market funds 205 -
Other interest recevable 53 73
262 356
Total iIncome 5,215 4,261
Total income comprises
Dividends 4,953 3,905
interest 258 73
Other income 4 283
5,215 4,261
3. INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE
Revenue Revenue
2007 2006
£000 £00)
Pernodic fees 1,117 880
Irrecoverable VAT thereon 195 154
1,312 1,034

Details of the management agreement are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 16
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS tontnued

4, OTHER EXPENSES

Secretanal services

Directors’ remuncration

Audrlors’ remuneration for the audit of the Group and Company
Audstors’ remuneration for the review of the intenim accounts
Admnistration fees

Production and distribution of Annual and Intenim Reports
Registrat’s fees

Bank charges

Marketing

Savings scheme

Other

5. FINANCE COSTS

Inieresi payable

6 TAXATION

(a} Taxation Charge on Ordinary Activitigs

UK corpoiation tax @ 30%
Irrecoverable foreign tax

Revenue Revenue
2007 2006
£000 {000

47 47
62 62
29 21

2 4
113 108
35 i9
28 69
40 37
74 65
50 50
81 57
561 539

Revenue Revenue
2007 2006
£000 £600
226 70
226 70

Revenue Revenue
2007 2006
£060 £000

58 31
58 31




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

{b) Factors affecting Tax Charge for Penod

Approved mnvesiment trusis are exempt from tax on capital gains made within the Trust

The tax charge for the peniod 1s fower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2006 30%) The

differences are explained below

2007 2006
£000 £000
Total Profit before taxation 55.489 58,579
Profit multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax 16,647 17,574
Effects of
Non taxable UK capital gains (15,712} (16,789)
Non taxable UK investment income (1,068) {802)
Excess administration expenses unused 118 2
Irrecoverable {oreign tax 58 31
Disallowed expenses 15 15
Current tax charge 58 31

{c) Provision for Deferred Taxation

There 1s no requirement to make a provesion for deferred taxation in the current or prior accounting period

{d) Factors that may affect future Tax Charges

The Campany has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £1,424,000 (2006 £1,249,000), ansing as a result of having
unutilised management expenses and loan relationship deficits in addition there are unrecognised deferred tax
assets of £7,000 (2006 £37,000) retating to the subsidiary’s unutilised tax losses The expenses will only be
utilised if the tax treatment of the capital gains made by the Company or the Company's investment profile changes
The subsidiary has tax losses which will anly be recoverable to the extent that there are sulficient future taxabte

revenues

7. DIVIDENDS PAID

Revenue Revenue
2007 2006
£000 £000

Amounts recogmised as distnbutions to equity holders in the year
Final dwidend for 2006 6 25p (2005 5 75p) 1,500 1,380
Interim dividend for 2007 3 5p (2006 3 5p) 840 840
2,340 2,220

The proposed final dividend 15 subject to approval by Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been

tncluded as a bablity in these finangial statements

43




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ontinued)

We set out below the total diwvidends pard and proposed in respect of the financial year, whichis the basis on which the
requirements of Section 842 of the income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 are considered The Company’s revenue
avatlable for distnbution by way of dividend for the year is £3,063,000 (2006 £2,374,000)

Revenue Revenue

2007 2006

£000 £000

Intenim dividend for 2007 3 5p {2006 3 5p) B40 840
Proposed final dividend for 2007 9 Op (2006 6 25p) 2,160 1,500

3,000 2,340

B. RETURN ON ORDINARY SHARES (EQUITY)

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capntal Total
2007 2007 2007 2066 2006 2006
Returns per share 12.8p 218 2p 231 0p 10 8p 233 2p 244 Op

Returns

Revenue
Revenue return per share 15 based on revenue return attnbutable to equity shareholders of £3,058,000 (2006
£2,587,000)

Capital
Capital return per share 1s based on capital gam attributable to equity shareholders of £52,373,000 (2006 £55,961,000)

Total
Return per share 15 based on the combined reterns of revenue and captal attnibutable to equity shareholders of
£55,431,000 {2006 £58,548,000}

Both revenue and capital return are based on 8,000,000 Ordinary shares (2006 8,000,000) and 16,000,000 ‘A’ non-
voting Ordinary shares (2006 16,000,000}, in 1ssue throughout the year

9 PROFIT OF THE COMPANY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The profit for the year after taxation dealt with 1n the accounts of the Company 1s £55,431,000 {2006 £58,548,000) As
permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, no separate income statement for the Company has been included
in these accounts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ontinued)

10. SHARE IN GROUP UNDERTAKING

The Company owns 100% of the Ordinary share capital and voting nghts of Consobdated Investment Funds Linuted, an

investment dealing company, which 1s registered and operates in England

2007 2006
£000 £000
Cost a1 1 April 2006 3 3
Unreahsed appreciation at 1 April 2006 640 426
Valuation at 1 Apnl 2006 643 429
Movements (n unrealised appreciation (5) 214
Valuation as at 31 March 2007 638 643
Cost at 31 March 2007 3 3
Unrealised appreciation 635 640
638 643
11. INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
Group and
Company
2007 AlM B
Total Listed OFEX  Unguoted
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost at 1 Apnil 2006 122,631 102,907 12,816 6,908
Unrealised appreciation at 1 Aprid 2006 79,468 76,019 2,102 1,347
Valuation at 1 Aprid 2006 202,099 178,926 14,918 8,255
Movements in the year
Changes i isting - 5,407 {4,274) (%,133)
Purchases at cost 66,460 27,685 37.808 967
Sales - proceeds (77,321) (62,812) (4,367)  {10,142)
~realised gams on sales 32,063 25,197 2,251 4,615
Movement in unrealised appreciation 20,340 15,220 4,675 445
Valuation as at 31 March 2007 243,641 189,623 51,011 3,007
Cost at 31 March 2007 143,833 98,384 54,234 1,215
Unrealised appreciation at 31 March 2007 99,808 91,239 6,777 1,792
253,641 189,623 51,011 3,007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Transaction cests

During the year expenses were incurred 1 acquering and disposing of investments classified as fair value through profit
or loss These have been expensed through capital and are inciuded within gains on investments in the Income
Statement The total costs were as follows -

Group and Company

2007 2006

£000 £000

Purchases 275 199
Sales 140 119
415 318

12. SIGNIFICANT HOLDINGS
The Company's holdings of 10% or more, of any class of shares in investment compames and 20% or more of any class
of shares in non-investment companes are detailed below

Latest Profit

Country of %of  avalable  Aggregate after

Incarporation Class of class audited  Capstal and Tax fon

Non nvestment company or registration capstal held accounis Reserves the year
3000 $000

Ocean Wilsons Holdings Limited Bermuda  Ordinary 264 311206 225 641 56,077

The above 15 included as part of the mvestment portfolio in accordance with 1AS 28 - Investment i Associates

The Company has material holdings in the following compames which represent more than 3% of any class of eguity
share capita

Company Class of capital % of class held
Ocean Wilsons Holdinrgs Limited Ordinary 26 45
Straight Plc Ordmnary 805
Dowhiss Plc Crdinary 6 54
Robotic Technology Plc Ordinary 6 06
Work Group Pic Ordinary 549
international Nuclear Solutions Plc Ordinary 509
BV Group Plc QOrdenary 472
Helesi Plc Ordinary 4 60
Cap-XX Plc Ordinary 431
HaHadale Group Plc Ordinary 411
Media Square Plc Ordmary 396
Morsan Group Plc Ordinary 386
NCC Group Plc Ordinary 383
Rargreaves Services Pic Ordinary 381
Engel East Europe NV Ordinary 313
Ark Therapeutics Group Plc Ordinary 309
Ramco Energy Plc Ordinary 308
Andor Technology Plc Ordinary 300
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontinued)

13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Amount due from broker

Denwvative instruments held for trading
Prepayments and accrued income
Recoverable overseas tax

14. CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS

JP Morgan cash funds

15 CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank loans and overdrafts
Amgunt due to broker

Dug to subsichary undertaking
Other creditors and accruals

16 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

300,000 7 5% Cumulative preference shares of £1
8,000,000 Ordinary shares of 5p

16,000,000 “A’ non-voting Ordinary shares of 5p

Allatted, called up and fully paid
8,000,000 Ordinary shares of 5p
16,000,000 *A’ nan-voating Ordinary shares of 5p

Group Group  Company  Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £600 £000

- 584 - 584
80 - 80 -
591 322 591 322
66 24 66 24
737 930 737 930

Group Group  Company  Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000

4,667 - 4,667 -

4,667 4,667

Group Group  Company  Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £6060 £000 £000

- 6,600 - 6,600
708 - 708 -
- - 640 659
295 205 293 250
1,003 6,895 1,641 7,509
Company  Company

2007 2006

£000 £000

300 300

400 400

800 800

1,500 1,500

400 400

800 800

1,200 1,200

The ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares do not entitle the holders to receive notices or to vote, eitherin person or by proxy,
at any general meeting of the Company, but in all other respects rank par passu with the Grdinary shares of the Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ontinued

17. CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Group and Campany

2007 2006
£000 £000
Balances at 31 March 2007 and 1 Apnil 2006 300 300
18. RETAINED EARNINGS
Realised Unrealised Real:ised  Unrealised
Revenue Capial Capitat Revenue Capital Capital
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
Group £000 £000 £000 fo00 £000 £000
Opening halance at 1 Aprit 3,667 111,740 79,468 3,300 98,047 37,200
Profit for the year 3,058 32,033 20,340 2,587 13,693 42,268
Dwvidend paid (2,340) - - (2,220) -
Closing balance at 31 March 4,385 143,773 99,808 3,667 111,740 79,468
Realised Unrealised Realised Unrealised
Revenue Capital Capitat Revenue Capital Capital
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
Company £000 £000 £000 {000 £000 £000
Opening balance at 1 Apnil 3,027 111,740 80,108 2.873 98,047 37,627
Profit for the year 3,063 32,033 20,335 2,374 13,693 42,481
Devidend paid (2,340 - - (2,220} - -
Closing balance at 31 March 3,750 143,773 100,443 3,027 111,740 80,108
Note Only Revenue reserves are distnibutabte
19, NET ASSET VALUE
2007 2006
Net asset value per Ordinary and A" non-voting Ordinary sharg 1,039.4p 818 2p

The net asset value per Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary share is based on the net assets attnibutable Lo equity
shareholders of £249,466,000 (2006 196,375,000} and on 8,000,000 Ordwnary shares (2006 8,000,000) and
16,000,000 ‘A’ non-votng Qrdinary shares (2006 16,000,000}, ih 1ssue at 31 March 2907

20, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has entered into a commitment agreement with BV3 Limited, an unguoted property investment company
The commitment was for £4 million for a period of four years from 30 March 2004 and the amount outstanding at 31
March 2007 was £1,127,873 (2006 £3,706,167) At 31 March 2007 the amount drawn down less amounts receved under
the agreement was £1,050,954 (2006 £1,610,943)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contnued)

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

Background

The Company’s financial instruments comprise securities, cash balances and debtors and crechtors that anse directly from
its operatons

Risk Objectives and Policies

The objective of the Company 1s to achieve growth of shareholder vatue which 15 commensurate with the risks taken,
bearmg in mind that the protection of long-term shareholder value 1s paramount The policy of the Board 15 1o provide a
framewark within which the Investment Manager can operate and deliver the objectives of the Company

Risks Assoclated with Financal Instruments-
Foreign currency nisk

Foreign currency nsks anse in two distinct areas which affect the valuation of the investment portfolio, 1) where an
wmvestment s depomimated and paid for 1n a cutrency other than sterling, and 2) where an investment has substantial non-
sterting cash flows The Group does not normally hedge against foreign currency movements affecting the value of the
nvestment portfolio but takes account of this risk when making mvestment decisions The investment Manager monmitors
the effect of foreign currency fluctuations through the prniang of the investments by the various markets The level of
investments denominated in forergn currencies held by the Company at 31 March 15 2 7% of the portfalio (2006 2 9%)
and therefore the portfolio valuation 1s not matenally sensitive to foreign currency fluctuations

Dhirect No derect Direct No direct

foreign forergn foremgn foreign
currency currency Total currency currency Total

risk nsk risk risk
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Invesiments 6,695 236,946 243,641 5,860 196,239 202,099
Other recervables excluding prepayments - 726 726 - 927 927
Current asset investments - 4,667 4,667 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,424 1,424 - 241 241
Current habilities - (1,003) (1,003) - (6,895) (6,895)

6,695 242,760 249,455 5,860 190,512 196,372

Interest rate nisk

Interest rate risk 1s managed by the utilisation of short-term bank loan and overdraft facilities, which mimimises the
interest rate risk to the Company The Company has banking facilities amounting to £20 mullion which are avaitable for
the Investment Manager to use in purchasing investments, the costs of which are base rate plus a margin When an
mvestment (s made utiisme the faclity consideration 1s given Lo the financing costs which woutd impact the returns The
level of banking facilities used 1s monitored by both the Board and the Investment Manager on a regular basis The
impact on the revenue returns of the Company for every 1% change in snterest rates o the full banking faciity were
ublised would be £200,000 The level of banking facilities utibsed at 31 March 2007 was £nil (2006 £6.600,000)

interest rate changes will always impact equity prices The level and direction of change in equity prices 15 subject to
prevaiing local and world economics as well as market sentiment all of which are very difficult to predict with any
certainty Al 31 March 2007 and 2006 the Group had ng financial liabilities that bore an mterest rate risk, other than the
previously disclosed bank loan facilities

The Company has floating rate financial assets consssting of bank balances that bear inferest at rates based on the banks
floating interest rate During the period the average rate of interest earned on cash balances was 2 8%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS «ontinued)

Cash flow No Cash flow No

Interest interest nterest nterest
rate nsk rate nsk Total rate nisk rdte risk Total
2067 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investments - 243,641 243641 - 202,099 202,099
Other recervables excluding prepayments - 726 726 - 927 927
Investments 8,667 - 4,667 - - -
Cash and cash equivaients 1,424 - 1,424 241 - 241
Current iabibties - (1,003) (1,003) (6,895) - {6.895)

6,091 243,364 249,455 (6,654) 203,026 196,372

Market price risk

By the nature of iIts activities, the Company’s investments are exposed to market price fluctuations Net assetvalues are
calculated and reported daily to the London Stock Exchange The lnvestment Manager and the Board monitor the portfolio
valuauon on a regutar bases and consideration 1s given 1o hedging the portlolo against large market movements

The Company’s investment (n Ocean Wilsons 1s targe both in absolute terms (£74 8m) and as a proportion of the portfolio
(30 7%} Shareholders should recogmise that if anything of a severe and untoward nature were to happen to this company,
it could result m a significant reduction in the NAV and share price However it 1s an investment that the Board pays close
attention to and it should be pointed out that the nisks associated with 1t are very different from those of the other
compantes represented in the portfolio The company itself has recently undertaken a thorough review of i1ts business and
prospects and determined that its future hotds a lot of promise — a view with which we concur  As a consequence the
Board believes that the nsk involved in the investment 1s worthwhile

The portfolio as a whole does not correlate exactly to any London Stock Exchange index The charl below details the
movement of the Company’s net asset value against the FTSE 100 and 250 indices {or the year ended 31 March 2007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS tcontinued)

Dernvatives

The Investment Manager may only use dervative instruments in order to mitigate the market nisk to the portfolio Atthe
year end there were two OTC oplions open as delailed below These provide a imited degeee of protection from a fall In
the value of the FTSE 100 Index and would not materially smpact the portfolio returns if a large markel movement did occur
The Company entered into two simitar OTC options duning the year which proved profitable

Market Value
as at
Option index Notional Value Strike Price 31 March 2007 Expiry Date
Purchased FTSE 100 £16,075,895 5.716 89 £100,477 26 June 2007
Wriiten FTSE 100 £14,289,684 5,081 68 (£20,747) 26 June 2007

Credit Risk

The Company only transacts with regulated institutions on normal market terms which are trade date plus one to three
days The levels of amounts outstanding from brokers are regularly reviewed by the Investment Manager The duration
of credit nisk associated with the investment transactions 1s the period between the date the transaction took place, the
trade date and the date the stock and cash are transferred, the settlement date The level of nsk duning the period 15 the
difference between the value of the onginal transaction and its replacement with a new transaction The amounts due
to/ (from) brokers at 31 March 2007 are shown in Note 13 and Note 15

The Company 15 exposed 1o credit nsk on OTC options Amounts receivable in relation to options open at the year end
amounted to £79,730 (2006 Hil) The related credit nsk 1s managed by purchasing the options from a regulated
institution

Liquidity Risk

The majonty of the Company’s portfolio 15 held in iqusd quoted investments, however there 15 a large holding in Ocean
Wilsons Holdings Lid of 30 7% and 20 9% 1n AIM and unquoted mvestments

The Investment Manager takes into consideration the bquidity of each investment when purchasing and selling in order
to maximise the returns to Shareholders by piacing suitable transaction levels into the market Special consideration 15
given to investments that represent more than 5% of the investee company A detailed list of the investments held at 31
March 2007 is shown on Page 31, together with a summary table detalling the markets on which the investments are
guoted which can be used broadly to ascertain the levels of iguidity wathin the portfolio although biquidity wil vary with
each investment

The Group's financial habilities at 31 March 2007 consist of short-term bank loans amounting to £nd (2006 £6 6m) that
would bear interest based on the prevailing LIBOR rate plus an agreed margin

The Company has a total revolving credit faclity with Allied insh Bank Plc of £20m The faciity 15 made up of a £10m
commutled facibity and a £10m uncommitted faclity both repayable on or before 18 December 2008 The Group has un-
drawn loans from this facilidty of £20m (2006 £13 4m) The Company holds this facility for use at short notice for its
investment activities If fully drawn the loan would form 8% of the current value of the mvestment partfolio




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contnued)

Capital Management

The Company considers Its capital to be its 1ssued share capital and reserves The Board regularly monitors its share
discount policy and the tevel of discounts and whilst it has the option to re-purchase shares, it considers that the best
means of attaining a good rating for the shares is to concentrate on good shareholder returns

However, the Board believes that the ability of the Company to re-purchase i1ts own A’ non voung Ordinary shares in the
market may potenually enable it to benefit all equity shareholders of the Company The re purchase of ‘A’ nen voting
Ordinary shares at a discount lo the underlying net asset value would enhance the net asset value per share of the
remaning equity shares and st nught also enable the Company o address more effectively any imbalance between supply
and demand for the Company’s ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares

22. RELATED PARTIES

Detalls of the relationship between the Company and Hansa Capuital Partners LLP, mncluding amounts paid duning the year
and owing at 31 March 2007 are disclosed in the Report of the Directors page 16 and in Note 3 above

23. CONTROLLING PARTIES

Al 31 March 2007 Nichotas B Dill, )r and Codan Trust Company Limited held 51 20% of the issued Ordinary shares
Additional information 1s disclosed in the Report of the Directors, “Substantial Shareholders” an page 18
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL (GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of
Hansa Trust PLC will be held at The Washington Hotel, 5
Curzon Street, London W1 SHE on 31 July 2007 at 11 30
a m , for the following purposes

Ordinary Business

1  To receive and consider the audited Fimanceal
Statements and the Report of the Directors for the year
ended 3t March 2007

2 Todeclare a iinal dividend

3  To re appoint the Auditors and to authonse the
Directors to determine the remuneration of the
Auditors

4 To re-elect My Hammond Chambers (a biography can
be found on page 8), who retires, a Director of the
Company

To re-elect Lord Borwick (a2 biography can be found on
page 8), who retires, a Director of the Company
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6  Tore-elect Mr Salomon (a biography can be found on
page 8), who retires, a Director of the Company

7 Tore elect Professor Wood (a biography can be found
on page 8), who retires, a Director of the Company

8 To approve the Directors’ Remuneratton Report and
authonse the Board to determine the remuneration of
the Directors

Special Business

Jo consider, and if thougnt fit, pass the following resoiutron
which will be proposed as a special resolution

Authonity ta re purchase up to 14 99% of the ‘A’ non-voting
Ordinary Shares

9 THAT the Company be uncenditionally authonsed to
make market purchases of up lo an aggregate of
2,398,400 ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares of 5p of the
Company at a price {exclusive of expenses) whichis

(@) notless than 5p per share, and

(b) not more than 5% above the average of the
middte-market quotations (as dernived from the
Daily Official Last of the London Stock Exchange)
for *A’ non voting Ordinary shares of 5p each in
the five business days immediately preceding any
such purchase, AND

THAT the authonty conferred by this resolution shall expsre
on the date of the next Annual Generat Meeting {except in
relatton to the purchase of shares, the contract for which
was concluded before such date and which might be
executed wholly or partly after such date)

By crder of the Board

Hansa Capital Partners LLP

Secretary 50 Curzon Street
29 june 2007 London W1| 7UW
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

| NOTES

1

Attendance at Meeting

Ordinary Shareholders, proxies and authorised
representatives of corporations which are Ordinary
Shareholders, are entitled to attend the meeting
Shareholders’ names must be entered on the register
by 11 30a m on 29 July 2007, so that they may have
the night fo vote at the meeting

Appointment of Proxies

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting
15 entitied to appomt one or more proxies to attend
and, upon a poll, 1o vote instead of him/her A proxy
need not also be a3 member

To be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting (and
for the purpose of the determination by the Company
of the number of votes they may cast), members must
be entered on the Company’s register of members by
11 30a m on 29 july 2007 (“the specified time’} If the
meeting s adiourned to a time not more than 48 hours
afier the specified 1me applicable to the ongwal
meeting, that ttme wili also apply for the purpose of
determining the entitiement of members to attend and
vote (and for the purpose of deterrmining the number
of votes they may cast) at the adjourned meeting If
however the meeting 15 adjourned for a longer perwod
then, to be so entitled, members must be entered on
the Company’s register of members at the time which
15 48 hours before the time fixed for the adjourned
meeting or, if the Company gives notice of the
adjourned meeting, at the time specified in that notice

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or
proxies through the CREST electronic  proxy
appointment service may do so for the annual general
meeting to be held on the above date and any
adjournment{s) thereof by using the procedures
described i the CREST Manual CREST Personal
Members or other CREST sponsored members, and
those CREST members who have appointed a voling
service provider(s), should refer to therr CREST
sponsor of voting service provide(s), who will be able
to take the appropriate action on thewr behalf

In order for a proxy appomtment or mstruction made
using the CREST service to be valid, the appropnate
CREST message (a ‘CREST Proxy Instruction’} must be
properly authenticated in accordance with CRESTCo's
specsfications and must contain the nformation
required for such instructions, as described m the
CREST Manual The message, regardless of whetherit
tonsututes the appointment of a proxy of an
amendment {o the istruction given to a previously
appointed proxy must, i order to he vahd, be
transmitied so as to be received by the Company's
agent JO RA10) by the latest time(s) for receipt of
proxy appointments specified in the notice of meeting

For this purpose, the ime of receipt will be taken to be
the time {as determined by the timestamp apphed to
the message by the CREST Applications Host) from
which the Company's agent is able to retneve the
message by enguiry to CREST m the manner
prescribed by CREST  After this time any change of
tnstructions fo proxies appointed through CREST
should be communicated to the appointee through
other means

CREST members and, where applicable, therr CREST
sponsors or voting service providers shouid note that
CRESTCo does not make available special procedures
in CREST for any particular messages Normal system
tirmngs and mitations will therefore apply in relation
to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It s the
responsthility of the CREST member concerned to take
(or, f the CREST member s a CREST personal member
or sponsored member or has appointed a voting
service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor
or votng service provider(s) take(s)) such action as
shall be necessary to ensure that a message 15
transmitted by means of the CREST system by any
particular time  in this connection, CREST members
and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting
service providers are referred, in particular, to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical
Limitations of the CREST system and tmings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation
35(5)}(a) of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations
2001




INVESTOR INFORMATION

The Company currently manages its affairs so as to be a qualifying investment trust for iSA purposes As a result, urder
current UK tegislation the Ordinary and ‘A" non-voting Ordinary shares gualfy for investraent m the stocks and shares
componeat of an ISA up to the fuli annual subscription imit The Company’s Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares
quakfy for inclusion in an existing general PEP 1t 1s the present intention that the Company will conduct its affars so as

to contrmue to quabfy for ISA and PEP products

CONTACT DETAILS

Please contact the Investment Manager, as below, if you
have any queries concerning the Company’s investments
or performance

Hansa Capnal Partners LEP
50 Curzon Street

London Wi} 7UW
Telephone 020 7647 5750
www hansagrp com

Please contact the I1SA, Savings Scheme and PEP
Manager, as below, if you have any quenes concerning a
Close Finsbury I1SA, Savings Scheme, MileStones or PEP
accaunt, online facilitres are avalable at the website
address below

Close Finsbury Asset Management Limved
Block C, Western House

Lynchwood Business Park

Peterboraugh PE2 6BP

Freephone 0800 169 6968

www closefinsbury com

Please contact the Registrars, as below, if you have a
query about a certficated holding 1n the Company’s
shares

Capita Resistrars

Northern House

Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge

Huddersfield

West Yorkshire HD8 OLA

Telephone 0870162 3131

Email shareholder services@capitaregistrars com
WWW.CapIaregIstrars com

WEBSITE ADDRESS AND CONTENTS

The Company’s website, www hansagrp com, contains
mformation on the Company and includes the following

Monthly Fact Sheets

Annual and Intenim Repaorts

Stock Exchange Announcements
Detadls of the Investment Manager

SHARE PRICE LISTINGS
The price of your shares can be found in the Financal
Times under the heading Investment Companies

information 15 also avadtable from FT Oity line by diatling
the following numbers

Qrdiary shares 0906003 - 3954
oF 0906 843 - 3954
‘A non-voting Ordimary shares 0906003 -3955
or 0906 843 — 3955
(when prompted use the last 4 digits as the code)

In addiion, share pnce information can be found under
the following

Code
Reuters
Qrcdinary shares HARN L
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares HANA L
Bilvomberg
Ordmary shares HAN LN

‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares HANA LN
SEAQ

Ordinary shares HAN

‘A’ non-voling Ordinary shares HANA

USEFUL INTERNET ADDRESSES

Assaciation of Investment Compames  www aitc co uk
l.ondon Stock

Exchange www londonstockexchange com
TrustNet www {rustnet com
interactive www i1 co uk

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Company year end 31 March
Prelimmary full year results announced 14 June
Annual Report sent to shareholders 5 July
Annual General Meeting held 31 july
Final Dividend payment 10 August
Announcement of intenim resulls November
friterim Report sent to shareholders December
Intenm Dividend payment December
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COMPANY INFORMATION

SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE
Hansa Capital Partners LLP

50 Curzon Street

London W1] 7UW

INVESTMENT MANAGER
Hansa Capstal Partners LLP
50 Curzon Street

Landon W) 7UW

AUDITORS

RSM Robson Rhodes LLP
30 Finsbury Square
London EC2P 2YU

SOLICITORS

Eversheds

Senator House

85 Queen Victoria Street
London EC4AV 4)L

PLAN MANAGERS

Close Finsbury Asset Management Linuted
Block C, Western House

Lynchwood Business Park

Poterborough PE2 6BP

REGISTRARS

Capita Registrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield

West Yorkshire HDB OLA

BANKERS

The Bank of New York
One Canada Sguare
tondon £14 5AL

STOCKBROKERS

Winterflood Investment Trusts

The Atnium Building, Cannon Bridge
25 Dowgate Hill

London EC4R 2GA




